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A. Introduction and Warnings
This summary should be read as an introduction to the Prospectus. Any decision to invest in the Bonds should be based on
consideration of the Prospectus as a whole by the investor. An investor investing in the Bonds could lose all or part of the invested
capital. Where a claim relating to the information contained in the Prospectus is brought before a court, the plaintiff investor might,
under national law, have to bear the costs of translating the Prospectus before the legal proceedings are initiated. Civil liability
attaches only to those persons who have tabled this summary including any translation thereof, but only where this summary is
misleading, inaccurate or inconsistent, when read together with the other parts of the Prospectus, or where it does not provide,
when read together with the other parts of the Prospectus, key information in order to aid investors when considering whether to
invest in the Bonds.
You are about to purchase a product that is not simple and may be difficult to understand.
Details of the Issuer and the Bonds are as follows:
Legal name of Company:

Central Business Centres p.l.c.

Registered Address:

Cortis Group, Cortis Buildings, Mdina Road, Zebbug ZBG 4211, Malta

Registration Number:

C 65702

Legal Entity Identifier:

485100OXBTV88TUBKA79

Email Address:

info@centralbusinesscentres.com

ISIN of the Bonds:

MT0000881236

The Prospectus has been approved by the Malta Financial Services Authority as the competent authority under the Prospectus
Regulation on the 24 September 2021. The Malta Financial Services Authority only approves the Prospectus as meeting the standards
of completeness, comprehensibility and consistency imposed by the Prospectus Regulation. Such approval shall not be considered as
an endorsement of the Issuer.
Details of the Malta Financial Services Authority:
Address:
Malta Financial Services Authority, Triq l-Imdina, Zone 1, Central Business District, Birkirkara CBD 1010, Malta.
Telephone:
+356 21441155
Website:
www.mfsa.mt

B. Key Information on the Issuer
Who is the issuer of the securities?
General
The Issuer’s legal and commercial name is Central Business Centres p.l.c., a public limited liability company incorporated and
operating under Maltese law with LEI 485100OXBTV88TUBKA79.
Principal Activities
The principal activity of the Company is to act as a finance, investment and property holding company.
Shares and Ownership
As at the date of the Prospectus, the Company has no shareholders which hold more than 10% of the its issued ordinary shares.
Key Managing Directors and Statutory Auditors
The members of the Board of Directors are Joseph Cortis, Petramay Attard Cortis, Adriana Cutajar, Joseph M Formosa and Alfred
Sladden.
The Company’s statutory auditors are RSM Malta, a firm registered as a partnership of certified public accountants holding a
practising certificate to act as auditors in terms of the Accountancy Profession Act (Cap. 281 of the laws of Malta).
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What is the key financial information regarding the Issuer?
The Company’s historical audited financial statements for the years ended 31 December 2018, 2019 and 2020 and the interim
financial statements for the period 01 January 2021 to 30 June 2021 are available on the Company’s website and at the registered
office of the Company. The audit reports of these three financial years do not contain any qualification, modification of opinion,
disclaimers or emphasis of matter.
There has been no significant change in the Company’s financial or trading position since 31 December 2020.
Key figures extracted from the said financial reports are being presented below:

Revenue (€’000)
EBITDA (€’000)
Fair value movement relating to
investment property (€’000)
Net income
Growth in revenue
EBITDA margin
Net margin
Earnings per share

Financial year
ended
31/12/2020
Audited
1,252
1,138

Financial year
ended
31/12/2019
Audited
1,086
888

Financial year
ended
31/12/2018
Audited
356
103

6-month period
ended
30/06/2021
Unaudited
870
805

6-month period
ended
30/06/2020
Unaudited
512
441

4,843

-

-

-

-

3,663
15.3%
90.9%
292.7%
€14.65

495
205.1%
81.8%
45.6%
€1.98

(119)
8.2%
28.9%
(33.4%)
(€0.47)

481
69.9%
92.5%
55.3%
€1.93

278
(13.3%)
86.2%
54.2%
€1.11

What are the key risks that are specific to the Issuer?
•
•
•
•

the Issuer is dependent on the revenues it generates and expects to generate from the lease of units forming part of its
property portfolio.
the core business of the Issuer is the acquisition and subsequent rental of immovable property and is therefore subject to
market and economic conditions in this sphere.
both the COVID-19 pandemic and the recent Financial Action Task Force (FATF) grey listing have the potential to hinder the
Company’s operations, particularly the ability to lease out units forming part of its property portfolio.
Changes to the regulatory environment in which the Company operates may adversely affect the business of the Issuer.

C. Key Information on the Securities
What are the main features of the securities?
The Bonds are being issued in an aggregate amount of up to €21,000,000 with a nominal value of €100 per Bond. The Bonds will be
issued in fully registered and dematerialised form and will be represented in uncertificated form by the appropriate entry in the
electronic register maintained on behalf of the Issuer at the CSD. There are no special rights attached to the Bonds other than the
right of the Bondholders to: (i) attend, participate in and vote at meetings of Bondholders in accordance with the Terms and
Conditions of the Bonds; (ii) payment of capital and interest in accordance with the ranking of the Bonds; and (iii) such other rights
attached to the Bonds emanating from the Securities Note.
The ISIN of the Bonds is MT0000881236. Unless previously re-purchased and cancelled or redeemed in whole or in part on any one
or more of the Early Redemption Dates, the Bonds will be redeemed at their nominal value (together with interest accrued to the
date fixed for redemption) on 10 November 2033. The Bonds shall bear interest from and including 10 November 2021 at the rate of
4% per annum on the nominal value thereof, payable annually in arrears on each Interest Payment Date. The first interest payment
will be effected on 10 November 2022 (covering the period 10 November 2021 to 9 November 2022). The Bonds constitute the
general, direct, unconditional and unsecured obligations of the Issuer, and shall at all times rank pari passu, without any priority or
preference among themselves and with other unsecured debt of the Issuer present and future, if any. Third party security interests
may be registered by the Issuer which will rank in priority to the Bonds against the assets of the Issuer for so long as such security
interests remain in effect.
The Bonds are freely transferable and have been created in accordance with Maltese law.
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Where will the securities be traded?
Application has been made for the Bonds to be admitted to trading on the Official List of the MSE.
What are the key risks that are specific to the securities?
•
•
•
•
•

Secured or privileged debts of the Issuer shall rank at all times ahead of the obligations of the Issuer under the Bonds.
The impact of COVID-19 may impact the orderly and liquidity of capital markets and therefore, the Bonds.
The Bonds may be redeemed. In the event that the Issuer exercises the option to redeem the Bonds, the Bondholders might
suffer a lower than expected yield and might not be able to reinvest the funds on the same terms. This optional redemption
feature may also have a negative impact on the market value of the Bonds.
The terms and conditions of the Bonds permit majorities to bind all Bondholders including Bondholders who did not attend
and vote at the relevant meeting and Bondholders who voted in a manner contrary to the majority.
Failure of the Company to comply with the applicable law in Malta may result in the suspension or discontinuation of listing
of the Bonds.

D. Key Information on the Offer of Securities to the Public and/or the Admission to Trading on a
Regulated Market
Why is the Prospectus being produced?
The Company has produced and published the Prospectus in satisfaction of the Capital Markets Rules and Prospectus Regulation
applicable to bond issues and their admission to trading on the Official List of the MSE.
The proceeds from the Bond Issue, which net of Bond Issue expenses are expected to amount to approximately €20,700,000, will be
used by the Issuer for the following purposes, in the amounts and order of priority set out below:
a.
b.
c.

the amount of circa €17.5 million will be used to purchase the Property;
the amount of circa €3 million will be used to repay the 2014 Bonds; and
the amount of circa €200,000 will be used for general corporate funding purposes

The Bond Issue is conditional upon: (a) 67% of the Bond Issue being fully subscribed and (b) the Bonds being admitted to the Official
List.
The Bond Issue is not subject to any underwriting agreement on a firm commitment basis.
Conflicts of interest in relation to the Bond Issue
Mr Joseph Cortis is a Director and a director on SMW Cortis Limited (C 6728) and Lapsi Court Limited (C 896). Accordingly, conflicts
of interest could potentially arise in relation to transactions involving the Issuer, SMW Cortis and Lapsi Court Limited (C 896).
Under which conditions and timetable can I invest in this security?
General Terms and Conditions
The Bonds are open for subscription to all categories of investors, provided that the Authorised Financial Intermediaries shall be
required to carry out an Appropriateness Test in respect of each Applicant for the purpose of assessing such Applicant’s level of
knowledge and experience prior to investing in the Bonds.
The Issuer shall allocate the entirety of the Bonds to Authorised Intermediaries participating in the Intermediaries’ Offer as described
above, without priority or preference and in accordance with the allocation policy determined by the Issuer and the Sponsor.
Subscription amounts shall be in multiples of €100, subject to a minimum initial subscription of €2,000. The allotment of Bonds in
favour of successful Applicants is conditional upon 67% of the Bond Issue being fully subscribed and the Bonds being admitted to the
Official List of the MSE. In the event that the Bonds are not admitted to the Official list of the MSE, any application monies received
by the Issuer will be returned, without interest, by direct credit into the Applicant’s bank account indicated by the Applicant on
Application.
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Expected timetable of the Offer
1. Application Forms available
2. Opening and closing of subscription lists relative to the Offer Period
3. Commencement of interest on the Bonds
4. Expected date of announcement of basis of acceptance
5. Refunds of unallocated monies (if any)
6. Expected dispatch of allotment advices
7. Expected date of admission of the securities to listing
8. Expected date of commencement of trading in the securities

1 October 2021
6 October 2021 to 27 October 2021, both days included
10 November 2021
10 November 2021
10 November 2021
10 November 2021
10 November 2021
11 November 2021

Admission to trading on a regulated market and plan for distribution
Subject to admission to listing of the Bonds to the Official List of the MSE, the Bonds will be assigned ISIN MT0000881236. The Bonds
will be allotted by the Company in accordance with its allocation policy.
Expenses
The total expenses of the Bond Issue are estimated to be circa €300,000 and shall be borne by the Company. No expenses will be
specifically charged by the Company to any Applicant who subscribes for Bonds.
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REGISTRATION DOCUMENT
Dated 24 September 2021
This Registration Document is issued in accordance with the provisions of Chapter 4 of the Capital Markets Rules issued by the Malta
Financial Services Authority and of the Prospectus Regulation.

CENTRAL BUSINESS CENTRES PLC
A public limited liability company registered in Malta with company registration number C 65702
Legal Counsel

Sponsor, Manager & Registrar

Mamo TCV Advocates

Calamatta Cuschieri

Investment Services Limited
THIS REGISTRATION DOCUMENT HAS BEEN DRAWN UP AS PART OF A SIMPLIFIED PROSPECTUS IN ACCORDANCE WITH ARTICLE 14 OF THE PROSPECTUS
REGULATION AND HAS BEEN APPROVED BY THE MALTA FINANCIAL SERVICES AUTHORITY, AS THE COMPETENT AUTHORITY UNDER THE PROSPECTUS
REGULATION. THE MALTA FINANCIAL SERVICES AUTHORITY HAS AUTHORISED THE ADMISSIBILITY OF THE SECURITIES AS A LISTED FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENT. THIS MEANS THAT THE MALTA FINANCIAL SERVICES AUTHORITY HAS APPROVED THIS REGISTRATION DOCUMENT AS MEETING THE
STANDARDS OF COMPLETENESS, COMPREHENSIBILITY AND CONSISTENCY AS PRESCRIBED BY THE PROSPECTUS REGULATION. SUCH APPROVAL SHOULD
NOT HOWEVER BE CONSIDERED AS AN ENDORSEMENT OF THE COMPANY THAT IS THE SUBJECT OF THIS REGISTRATION DOCUMENT. IN PROVIDING THIS
AUTHORISATION, THE MALTA FINANCIAL SERVICES AUTHORITY DOES NOT GIVE ANY CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE POTENTIAL RISKS IN INVESTING IN
THE SAID INSTRUMENT AND SUCH AUTHORISATION SHOULD NOT BE DEEMED OR BE CONSTRUED AS A REPRESENTATION OR WARRANTY AS TO THE
SAFETY OF INVESTING IN SUCH INSTRUMENTS.
THE MALTA FINANCIAL SERVICES AUTHORITY ACCEPTS NO RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONTENTS OF THE PROSPECTUS, MAKES NO REPRESENTATIONS AS
TO ITS ACCURACY OR COMPLETENESS AND EXPRESSLY DISCLAIMS ANY LIABILITY WHATSOEVER, FOR ANY LOSS HOWSOEVER ARISING FROM, OR IN
RELIANCE UPON, THE WHOLE OR ANY PART OF THE CONTENTS OF THE PROSPECTUS INCLUDING ANY LOSSES INCURRED BY INVESTING IN THE SECURITIES
ISSUED BY THE COMPANY.
A PROSPECTIVE INVESTOR SHOULD ALWAYS SEEK INDEPENDENT FINANCIAL ADVICE BEFORE DECIDING TO INVEST IN ANY LISTED FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT.
A PROSPECTIVE INVESTOR SHOULD BE AWARE OF THE POTENTIAL RISKS IN INVESTING IN THE SECURITIES OF AN ISSUER AND SHOULD MAKE THE DECISION
TO INVEST ONLY AFTER CAREFUL CONSIDERATION AND CONSULTATION WITH HIS OR HER OWN INDEPENDENT FINANCIAL ADVISOR.

Approved by the Directors

Joseph Cortis
in his capacity as Director of the Company
and for and on behalf of: Petramay Attard Cortis, Adriana Cutajar, Joseph M Formosa and Alfred Sladden
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IMPORTANT INFORMATION
THIS REGISTRATION DOCUMENT CONTAINS INFORMATION ON THE COMPANY ITS BUSINESS IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE REQUIREMENTS
OF THE ACT, THE CAPITAL MARKETS RULES AND THE PROSPECTUS REGULATION.
NO BROKER, DEALER, SALESMAN OR OTHER PERSON HAS BEEN AUTHORISED BY THE COMPANY OR ITS DIRECTORS TO ISSUE ANY
ADVERTISEMENT OR TO GIVE ANY INFORMATION OR TO MAKE ANY REPRESENTATIONS IN CONNECTION WITH THE SECURITIES OF THE
COMPANY OTHER THAN THOSE CONTAINED IN THIS REGISTRATION DOCUMENT AND IN THE DOCUMENTS REFERRED TO HEREIN, AND IF
GIVEN OR MADE, SUCH INFORMATION OR REPRESENTATIONS MUST NOT BE RELIED UPON AS HAVING BEEN AUTHORISED BY THE
COMPANY OR ITS DIRECTORS OR ADVISERS.
THE MALTA FINANCIAL SERVICES AUTHORITY ACCEPTS NO RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONTENTS OF THE PROSPECTUS, MAKES NO
REPRESENTATIONS AS TO ITS ACCURACY OR COMPLETENESS AND EXPRESSLY DISCLAIMS ANY LIABILITY WHATSOEVER FOR ANY LOSS
HOWSOEVER ARISING FROM, OR IN RELIANCE UPON, THE WHOLE OR ANY PART OF THE CONTENTS OF THE PROSPECTUS.
THE PROSPECTUS DOES NOT CONSTITUTE, AND MAY NOT BE USED FOR PURPOSES OF, AN OFFER OR INVITATION TO SUBSCRIBE FOR
SECURITIES ISSUED BY THE ISSUER BY ANY PERSON IN ANY JURISDICTION (I) IN WHICH SUCH OFFER OR INVITATION IS NOT AUTHORISED
OR (II) IN WHICH THE PERSON MAKING SUCH OFFER OR INVITATION IS NOT QUALIFIED TO DO SO OR (III) TO ANY PERSON TO WHOM IT
IS UNLAWFUL TO MAKE SUCH OFFER OR INVITATION.
THIS PROSPECTUS IS VALID FOR A PERIOD OF TWELVE MONTHS FROM THE DATE HEREOF. FOLLOWING THE LAPSE OF THIS VALIDITY
PERIOD, THE COMPANY IS NOT OBLIGED TO SUPPLEMENT THE PROSPECTUS IN THE EVENT OF SIGNIFICANT NEW FACTORS, MATERIAL
MISTAKES OR MATERIAL INACCURACIES.
IT IS THE RESPONSIBILITY OF ANY PERSON IN POSSESSION OF THE PROSPECTUS AND ANY PERSON WISHING TO ACQUIRE ANY SECURITIES
ISSUED BY THE ISSUER TO INFORM THEMSELVES OF, AND TO OBSERVE AND COMPLY WITH, ALL APPLICABLE LAWS AND REGULATIONS
OF ANY RELEVANT JURISDICTION. PROSPECTIVE INVESTORS FOR ANY SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY ADMITTED TO TRADING ON THE
MSE SHOULD INFORM THEMSELVES AS TO THE LEGAL REQUIREMENTS OF SO APPLYING FOR ANY SUCH SECURITIES AND OF ANY
APPLICABLE EXCHANGE CONTROL REQUIREMENTS AND TAXES IN THE COUNTRIES OF THEIR NATIONALITY, RESIDENCE OR DOMICILE.
A COPY OF THIS DOCUMENT HAS BEEN SUBMITTED TO THE MALTA FINANCIAL SERVICES AUTHORITY IN SATISFACTION OF THE CAPITAL
MARKETS RULES AND TO THE MALTA STOCK EXCHANGE IN SATISFACTION OF THE MALTA STOCK EXCHANGE BYE-LAWS.
STATEMENTS MADE IN THIS REGISTRATION DOCUMENT ARE, EXCEPT WHERE OTHERWISE STATED, BASED ON THE LAW AND PRACTICE
CURRENTLY IN FORCE IN MALTA AND ARE SUBJECT TO CHANGES THEREIN.
ALL THE ADVISORS TO THE COMPANY NAMED IN THIS REGISTRATION DOCUMENT UNDER THE HEADING “ADVISERS AND STATUTORY
AUDITORS” IN SECTION 4 OF THIS REGISTRATION DOCUMENT HAVE ACTED AND ARE ACTING EXCLUSIVELY FOR THE COMPANY IN
RELATION TO THE PROSPECTUS AND HAVE NO CONTRACTUAL, FIDUCIARY OR OTHER OBLIGATION TOWARDS ANY OTHER PERSON AND
WILL, ACCORDINGLY, NOT BE RESPONSIBLE TO ANY INVESTOR OR ANY OTHER PERSON WHOMSOEVER IN RELATION TO THE
TRANSACTIONS PROPOSED IN THE PROSPECTUS.
THE INFORMATION ON THE ISSUER’S WEBSITE DOES NOT FORM PART OF THE PROSPECTUS UNLESS THAT INFORMATION IS
INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE INTO THE PROSPECTUS. ACCORDINGLY, NO RELIANCE OUGHT TO BE MADE BY ANY INVESTOR ON ANY
INFORMATION OR OTHER DATA CONTAINED IN SUCH WEBSITES AS THE BASIS FOR A DECISION TO INVEST IN THE SECURITIES.
THE VALUE OF INVESTMENTS CAN GO UP OR DOWN AND PAST PERFORMANCE IS NOT NECESSARILY INDICATIVE OF FUTURE
PERFORMANCE. PROSPECTIVE INVESTORS SHOULD CAREFULLY CONSIDER ALL THE INFORMATION CONTAINED IN THE PROSPECTUS
AS A WHOLE AND SHOULD CONSULT THEIR OWN INDEPENDENT FINANCIAL AND OTHER PROFESSIONAL ADVISERS.
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1. DEFINITIONS
In this Registration Document the following words and expressions shall bear the following meanings whenever such words and
expressions are used in their capitalised form, except where the context otherwise requires:
2014 Bond Issuance Programme

the bond issuance programme pursuant to which the 2014 Existing Bonds were issued under
a Base Prospectus dated 5 December 2014, as supplemented by a supplement dated 4
December 2015 and the Final Terms regulating each series dated 22 December 2014 and 4
December 2015 respectively;

2017 Bond Issuance Programme

the bond issuance programme pursuant to which the 2017 Existing Bonds were issued under
a Base Prospectus dated 29 May 2017 and the Final Terms regulating a series dated 12 June
2017;

2014 Existing Bonds

the six million Euro (€6,000,000) unsecured bonds issued pursuant to the 2014 Bond
Issuance Programme;

2017 Existing Bonds

the six million Euro (€6,000,000) unsecured bonds issued pursuant to the 2017 Bond
Issuance Programme;

2014 Existing Bondholders

the holders of 2014 Existing Bonds;

2017 Existing Bondholders

the holders of 2017 Existing Bonds;

2017 Prospectus

the prospectus dated 29 May 2017 issued by the Company in relation to the 2017 Bond
Issuance Programme;

2014 Subordinated Loan
Agreements

(i) the subordinated loan agreement dated 20 November 2014 between the Issuer and SMW
Cortis for the loan amount of €8,050,000; (ii) the subordinated loan agreement dated 20
November 2014 between the Issuer and Lapsi Court Limited (C 896) for the loan amount of
€2,000,000; and (iii) the subordinated loan agreement dated 20 November 2014 between
the Issuer and SMW Cortis for the loan amount of €400,000 of which €250,000 has been
utilised (the subordinated loan agreement for the loan amount of €400,000 (the “400K Loan
Agreement”);

2017 Subordinated Loan
Agreement

the subordinated loan agreement dated 15 May 2017 between the Issuer and SMW Cortis
for the loan amount of €5,800,000;

2021 Subordinated Loan
Agreement

the subordinated loan agreement dated 15 September 2021 between the Issuer and SMW
Cortis for the loan amount of €500,000 granted for the purpose of general corporate
funding;

Act

the Companies Act (Cap 386 of the laws of Malta);

Amendment Agreement

the agreement through which the 400K Loan Agreement was subordinated to any and all
monetary obligations of the Issuer toward the Bondholders under this Bond Issue;

Bond Issue or Offer

the issue of the Bonds;

Bonds

the €21,000,000 4% unsecured bonds 2033 issued by the Company pursuant to the
Prospectus;

Bondholder/s

a holder of the Bonds;

Business Premises Zebbug

the property serving as a commercial development situated at Mdina Road corner with
Attard Road, Zebbug;

Capital Markets Rules

the Capital Markets Rules of the Malta Financial Services Authority, as may be amended
from time to time;

CBC Gudja

the property serving as a business centre situated at Tarxien Road, Gudja, Malta;
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CBC St. Julian’s

the property serving as a business centre collectively with Villa Fieres situated at Spinola
Bay, St. Julian’s, Malta;

CBC Zebbug

the property serving as a business centre situated at Mdina Road, Zebbug, Malta having no
official number and named ‘Central Business Centre’;

Company or Issuer
or CBC

Central Business Centres plc, a public limited liability company registered under the laws of
Malta bearing company registration number C 65702 and having its registered office at
Cortis Group, Cortis Buildings, Mdina Road, Zebbug ZBG 4211, Malta;

Current Properties

CBC St. Julian’s, CBC Gudja, CBC Zebbug and the Zebbug Business Premises;

Directors or Board

the directors of the Company whose names are set out in sub-section 10.1 under the
heading “The Board”;

Euro or €

the lawful currency of Malta;

Malta Financial Services Authority

the Board of Governors of the MFSA acting as the Malta Financial Services Authority for the
purposes of the Malta Financial Services Authority Act (Cap. 330 of the laws of Malta), which
Malta Financial Services Authority is established in terms of the Financial Markets Act (Cap.
345 of the laws of Malta);

Malta Stock Exchange or MSE

Malta
Stock Exchange p.l.c., as originally constituted in terms of the Financial Markets Act
;
(Cap. 345 of the laws of Malta) with company registration number C 42525 and having its
registered office at Garrison Chapel, Castille Place, Valletta VLT 1063, Malta;

Memorandum and Articles of
Association or M&A

the memorandum and articles of association of the Company in force at the time of
publication of the Prospectus. The terms “Memorandum” and “Articles” shall be construed
accordingly;

MFSA

the Malta Financial Services Authority, established in terms of the Malta Financial Services
Authority Act (Cap. 330 of the laws of Malta);

Promise of Sale Agreement

the promise of sale agreement dated 05 May 2021 entered into between the Issuer and
Calthon Limited (C5061) relating to the acquisition of the Property by the Issuer and
included as Annex II of this Registration Document;

Property

the property known as the ‘Savoy Shopping Complex’ 267 Republic St, Valletta VLT 1112 as
better described in the Valuation Report;

Property A

the building consisting of a showroom and factory at ground floor level and wedding hall at
first floor level named “St. Mary Hall”, without official number and named “S.M.W. Cortis”
together with an adjacent undeveloped portion of land, all accessible from Triq L-Mdina in
Zebbug Malta, which building and adjacent portion of land together have a total superficial
area of approximately 4,533 square metres;

Property B

the divided portion of land at Zebbug, Malta, having a superficial area of approximately
4,500 square metres, bounded on the south by Property A, on the north by an unnamed
public road and on the west in part by the aforesaid unnamed public road and in part by the
road known as Triq il Qadima ta’ H’Attard;

Prospectus

collectively, the Summary, this Registration Document and the Securities Note, all dated 24
September 2021, as may be supplemented from time to time;

Prospectus Regulation

Commission Regulation (EU) 2017/1129 of 14 June 2017 of the European Parliament and of
the Council on the prospectus to be published when securities are offered to the public or
admitted to trading on a regulated market, and repealing Directive 2003/71/EC, as may be
amended and/or supplemented from time to time;

Registration Document

this registration document issued by the Company dated 24 September 2021, forming part
of the Prospectus;

Securities Note

the securities note issued by the Company dated 24 September 2021, forming part of the
Prospectus;
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SMW Cortis

S.M.W. Cortis Limited, a private limited liability company registered under the laws of Malta
bearing company registration number C 6728 and having its registered office at Cortis
Group, Cortis Buildings, Mdina Road, Zebbug ZBG 4211, Malta;

Summary

the summary issued by the Company dated 24 September 2021, forming part of the
Prospectus;

Termination Agreement

the agreement dated 15 September 2021 through which the loan amounts owing under the
2014 Subordination Agreements (with the exception of the 400K Loan Agreement which
shall remain in place) and the 2017 Subordination Agreements were waived and cancelled;

Valuation Report

the report dated 02 September 2021 issued by Arch Joe Cassar of C.E. House, 2nd Floor, Dun
Karm Street, B’Kara By Pass, Birkirkara BKR 9033 Malta, in terms of Chapter 7 of the Capital
Markets Rules and included as Annex I of this Registration Document;

Villa Fieres

the property situated at Spinola, St. Julian’s, Malta covering a total area of 1,977 square
metres comprising of the fully detached building known as ‘Villa Fieres’, its adjoining
gardens and its airspace and underlying terrain; and

Zebbug Business Premises

the business centre situated in Zebbug, Malta, having a superficial area of approximately
7,453 square metres acquired from SMW Cortis in 2017, part of the purchase price satisfied
from the proceeds of the 2017 Bond issuance programme.

All references in the Prospectus to “Malta” are to the “Republic of Malta”.
Unless it appears otherwise from the context:
a. words importing the singular shall include the plural and vice-versa;
b. words importing the masculine gender shall include also the feminine gender and vice-versa;
c. the word “may” shall be construed as permissive and the word “shall” shall be construed as imperative; and
d. the word “person” shall refer to both natural and legal persons.

Registration Document – Central Business Centres plc

6

2. RISK FACTORS
2.1

INTRODUCTION
PROSPECTIVE INVESTORS SHOULD CAREFULLY CONSIDER WITH THEIR OWN INDEPENDENT FINANCIAL AND OTHER PROFESSIONAL
ADVISERS THE FOLLOWING RISK FACTORS AND OTHER INVESTMENT CONSIDERATIONS, AS WELL AS ALL THE OTHER INFORMATION
CONTAINED IN THE PROSPECTUS, BEFORE MAKING ANY INVESTMENT DECISION WITH RESPECT TO THE COMPANY. SOME OF THESE
RISKS ARE SUBJECT TO CONTINGENCIES WHICH MAY OR MAY NOT OCCUR AND THE COMPANY IS NOT IN A POSITION TO EXPRESS ANY
VIEWS ON THE LIKELIHOOD OF ANY SUCH CONTINGENCIES OCCURRING. THE SEQUENCE IN WHICH THE RISKS BELOW ARE LISTED IS
INTENDED TO BE INDICATIVE OF THE ORDER OF PRIORITY AND OF THE EXTENT OF THEIR CONSEQUENCES.
IF ANY OF THE RISKS DESCRIBED BELOW WERE TO MATERIALISE, THEY COULD HAVE A SERIOUS EFFECT ON THE COMPANY’S FINANCIAL
RESULTS AND TRADING PROSPECTS AND THE ABILITY OF THE COMPANY TO FULFIL ITS OBLIGATIONS UNDER THE SECURITIES ISSUED
BY THE COMPANY FROM TIME TO TIME. THE RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES DISCUSSED BELOW ARE THOSE IDENTIFIED AS SUCH BY THE
DIRECTORS OF THE COMPANY AS AT THE DATE OF THE PROSPECTUS, BUT THESE RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES MAY NOT BE THE ONLY
ONES THAT THE COMPANY FACES. ADDITIONAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES, INCLUDING THOSE WHICH THE COMPANY’S DIRECTORS
ARE NOT CURRENTLY AWARE OF, MAY WELL RESULT IN A MATERIAL IMPACT ON THE FINANCIAL CONDITION AND OPERATIONAL
PERFORMANCE OF THE COMPANY.
THIS REGISTRATION DOCUMENT IS NOT INTENDED TO CONSTITUTE, AND SHOULD NOT BE CONSTRUED AS CONSTITUTING, A
RECOMMENDATION BY THE COMPANY, THE ADVISERS LISTED IN SECTION 4 OR ANY FINANCIAL INTERMEDIARY TO PURCHASE THE
BONDS. PROSPECTIVE INVESTORS SHOULD MAKE THEIR OWN INDEPENDENT EVALUATION OF ALL RISK FACTORS AND SHOULD
CONSIDER ALL OTHER SECTIONS OF THE PROSPECTUS.
Forward-Looking Statements
The Prospectus includes statements that are, or may be deemed to be, ‘‘forward-looking statements’’. These forward-looking statements
can be identified by the use of forward-looking terminology, including the terms ‘‘believes’’, ‘‘estimates’’, ‘‘anticipates’’, ‘‘expects’’,
‘‘intends’’, ‘‘may’’, ‘‘will’’ or ‘‘should’’ or, in each case, their negative or other variations or comparable terminology. These forwardlooking statements relate to matters that are not historical facts. They appear in a number of places within the Prospectus and include
statements regarding the intentions, beliefs or current expectations of the Company and/or the Directors concerning, amongst other
things, the Company’s strategy and business plans, results of operations, financial condition, liquidity, prospects, dividend policy of the
Company and the market in which it operates.
By their nature, forward-looking statements involve risks and uncertainties because they relate to events and depend on circumstances
that may or may not occur in the future. Forward-looking statements are not guarantees of future performance and should therefore
not be construed as such. The Company’s actual results of operations, financial condition, liquidity, dividend policy and the development
of its strategy may differ materially from the impression created by the forward-looking statements contained in the Prospectus. In
addition, even if the results of operations, financial condition, liquidity and dividend policy of the Company are consistent with the
forward-looking statements contained in the Prospectus, those results or developments may not be indicative of results or developments
in subsequent periods. Important factors that may cause these differences include, but are not limited to, changes in economic
conditions, legislative and regulatory developments, changes in fiscal regimes and the availability of suitable financing.
Potential investors are advised to read the Prospectus in its entirety, and, in particular, all the risk factors set out in the Prospectus, for a
description of the factors that could vary the Company’s future performance. In the light of these risks, uncertainties and assumptions,
the events described in the forward-looking statements in this document may not occur. All forward-looking statements contained in
this document are made only as at the date hereof. Subject to applicable legal and regulatory obligations, the Company and its Directors
expressly disclaim any obligations to update or revise any forward-looking statement contained herein to reflect any change in
expectations with regard thereto or any change in events, conditions or circumstances on which any such statement is based.

2.2

RISK FACTORS
The Company’s principal activities are better outlined in section 6 of this Registration Document. The Property is already operational and
therefore the risks applicable to the Property and the Current Property are similar in nature, in that the Company will aim to maintain
and/or improve current occupancy rates at the Property and the Current Properties. The individual risks making up each category are
listed in order of probability of occurrence and then materiality upon occurrence, whilst the categories themselves are listed in order of
the collective probability of occurrence and materiality of the individual risks contained within.
A.

The Property
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(a) Acquisition: the terms of the purchase and acquisition of the Property are set out in the Promise of Sale Agreement. The
acquisition and purchase by the Issuer of the Property is subject to the successful conclusion of the final deed of sale and is the
primary purpose of the Bond Issue. The financial model used to test the success of the Bond Issue is dependent on the
aforementioned acquisition and should the conditions set out in the Promise of Sale Agreement, for whatever reason, not be
fulfilled or should the vendor fail to appear on the deed of sale, the Issuer will (i) not be in a position to acquire the Property
and (ii) benefit from the revenue expected to be generated from the lease of units pertaining thereto and this could have an
impact on the Company’s ability to make good on its obligations under the Bond Issue.
B.

Operational Risks

(a) Lease reliance: the Issuer relies on the revenues it generates and expects to generate from the lease of units forming part of
its property portfolio. There can be no guarantee that the Issuer will find suitable tenants for the units on the terms it seeks. In
addition, the financial stability of the tenants may change over time. Defaults by tenants could result in a reduction in rental
revenues, which could require the Issuer to contribute additional capital or obtain alternative financing. In addition, the Issuer
may incur costs in enforcing rights under the lease of a defaulting tenant, including eviction and re-leasing costs (including
renovation costs). Any adverse changes in tenants' financial condition may negatively affect cash flows generated by the
tenants. Furthermore, if the tenants decide not to renew their leases upon expiration, the Issuer may not be able to re-let their
space on terms as favourable as the original terms, if at all. Any of the foregoing factors may adversely affect the business,
financial condition and results of operations of the Issuer.
(b) Market and economic conditions: the core business of the Issuer is the acquisition and subsequent rental of immovable
property and is therefore subject to market and economic conditions in this sphere. These include general factors such as the
health of the local property market, inflation and fluctuations in interest rates, exchange rates, property prices and other
economic and social factors affecting demand for real estate generally, but also, the more specific factors relating to the COVID19 pandemic and Malta’s recent FATF grey listing. These are better described in part C of this Section 3.2. An oversupply in
commercial property could have a negative impact upon the Company’s income streams and ultimately, capital values which
could in turn have an adverse impact on the financial condition of the Issuer and its ability to meet its obligations under the
Bonds.
(c) Planning Approval: modifications may be envisaged by the Issuer to the Property and such modification will require the
approval of the relevant authorities. Whilst this is not currently anticipated, the Property may carry development potential.
Failure by the Issuer to obtain any such approvals which, if approved, could enhance the Issuer’s financial position and increase
the financial viability of the Property could result in the inability of the Company to obtain the maximum potential from the
property resulting in a loss of operating revenue from the same Property.
C.

COVID-19 and Financial Action Task Force (FATF) grey listing Risks:

(a) Both the COVID-19 pandemic and the recent Financial Action Task Force (FATF) grey listing have the potential to accelerate
and/or amplify the operational risks better described in in part B of section 2.2. The pandemic has seen an increase in
containment measures as well as a global push to incentivise working from home. Companies have experienced the benefits
of implementing such measures and it is anticipated that certain companies will maintain these measures post pandemic in a
bit to offer more flexibility to their employees as well as reduce office costs and the need to continually expand in terms of
office space. The exact impact of the grey listing is unknown; however, it is anticipated that this will impact Malta’s
attractiveness as a jurisdiction with the knock-on effect that less companies will seek to establish themselves in Malta. These
risks, both individually and/or collectively could result in an oversupply of commercial property for lease resulting in the
Company offering reduced rental rates and/or less favourable conditions.
D.

Property Valuation Risks

(a) Market Value: the valuation referred to in the Prospectus is prepared by an independent qualified architect in accordance with
the Kamra tal-Periti Valuation Standards (2012), which are aligned with The European Group of Valuers' Associations European
Valuation Standards. In providing a market value of the Property, the independent architect has made certain assumptions
which ultimately may cause the actual value to be materially different from any future value that may be expressed or implied
by such forward looking statements or anticipated on the basis of historical trends as reality may not match the assumptions.
There can therefore be no assurance that such property valuation will reflect actual market values.
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(b) Real Estate investment are illiquid: The Issuer is a property-holding company. Property is a relatively illiquid asset and such
illiquidity may impact the Issuer’s ability to vary its portfolio or dispose of, or liquidate part of its portfolio in a timely manner
and at satisfactory prices in response to changes in economic, real estate, market and other conditions. The real estate market
is affected by several factors which include general economic conditions, availability of financing, interest rates and other
factors, such as supply and demand that are beyond the Issuer’s control. These factors could have an adverse effect on the
Issuer’s financial position and results.

3. PERSONS RESPONSIBLE AND AUTHORISATION STATEMENT
3.1

PERSONS RESPONSIBLE
The Directors of the Company, whose names appear in sub-section 9.1 under the heading “The Board”, are the persons responsible for
the information contained in this Registration Document. To the best of the knowledge and belief of the Directors (who have all taken
reasonable care to ensure such is the case), the information contained in this Registration Document is in accordance with the facts and
does not omit anything likely to affect the import of such information. The Directors accept responsibility accordingly.
3.2

AUTHORISATION STATEMENT
This Registration Document has been drawn up as part of a simplified prospectus in accordance with article 14 of the Prospectus
Regulation and has been approved by the Malta Financial Services Authority as competent authority under the Prospectus Regulation.
The Malta Financial Services Authority only approves this Registration Document as meeting the standards of completeness,
comprehensibility and consistency imposed by the Prospectus Regulation. Such approval should not be considered as an endorsement
of the Issuer that is the subject of this Registration Document.

4. ADVISORS AND STATUTORY AUDITORS
4.1

ADVISORS
The persons listed under this sub-section have advised and assisted the Directors in the drafting and compilation of the Prospectus.
Legal Counsel
Name:
Address:

Mamo TCV Advocates
103, Palazzo Pietro Stiges, Strait Street,
Valletta VLT 1436, Malta

Financial Advisers
Name:
KPMG
Address:
Portico Building, Marina Street,
Pietà, PTA 9044, Malta
Sponsor, Manager & Registrar
Name:
Calamatta Cuschieri Investment Services Limited,
Address:
Ewropa Business Centre, Triq Dun Karm,
Birkirkara BKR 9034, Malta

4.2

AUDITORS

Name:
Address:

RSM Malta
Mdina Road,
Zebbug, ZBG 9015, Malta

The annual financial statements of the Company for the years ended 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2019 have been audited by
PwC Malta, whilst those for year ended 31 December 2020 have been audited by RSM Malta, a firm registered as a partnership of certified
public accountants holding a practising certificate to act as auditors in terms of the Accountancy Profession Act (Cap. 281 of the laws of
Malta).
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5. INFORMATION ABOUT THE COMPANY AND THE GROUP
5.1

THE COMPANY

Legal name of Company:

Central Business Centres p.l.c.

Registered address:

Cortis Group, Cortis Buildings, Mdina Road, Zebbug ZBG 4211, Malta

Place of registration and domicile:

Malta

Registration number:

C 65702

Date of registration:

20 June 2014

Legal form:

Public limited liability company in terms of the Act

Telephone number:

+356 2146 1758

Email address:

info@centralbusinesscentres.com

Website:

http://www.centralbusinesscentres.com*

Legal Entity Identifier (LEI):

485100OXBTV88TUBKA79

* The information on the Issuer’s website does not form part of the Prospectus unless that information is incorporated by reference into
the Prospectus.
The Articles of the Company are registered with the Registry of Companies. A full list of the objects for which the Company is established
is provided in Article 3 of the Memorandum. These objects include, inter alia, to carry on the business of property that includes, but is
not limited to, the acquisition, development, sale, letting, dealing and project management, in the residential, office/business, retail,
tourism, leisure/recreational and any other sector identified as beneficial to and in the best interests of the Company.

5.2

MAJOR SHAREHOLDERS
As at the date of this Prospectus, the Company has no shareholders which hold more than 10% of its issued ordinary shares, thereby
being regarded as substantial shareholders in terms of the Capital Markets Rules.
In addition to the fact that the Company is not directly or indirectly controlled:
the Directors are appointed by means of an ordinary resolution of the shareholders of the Company in general meeting;
all the ordinary shares in the Company rank pari passu in all respects and each ordinary share is entitled to one (1) vote at
general meetings;
a Director shall not vote at a meeting of Directors in respect of any contract, arrangement or proposal in which he has a material
interest; and
the audit committee is tasked with the review of transactions and arrangements between the Company and a related party,
which includes the shareholders.
In addition to there being no major shareholder in place, the Company also believes that the above measures further ensure that no
abuse by any of the shareholders can take place.
In terms of certain agreements, the Company may, in its sole discretion, exercise the option to settle the consideration or debt owing (as
applicable) or any part thereof through the issue and allotment of ordinary shares in the Company to the lender:
a. the 400K Loan Agreement; and
b. the 2021 Subordinated Loan Agreement.
It is not expected that the Issuer will issue, during the next financial year, any shares, whether fully or partly paid up, in consideration for
cash or otherwise.

5.3

FINANCING AND FINANCIAL SOLVENCY
The Issuer has previously raised finance as follows:
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-

six million Euro (€6,000,000) through a bond programme in 2014, pursuant to which two separate issues of bonds were issued
as follows:
o three million Euro (€3,000,000) seven-year bonds (maturing in 2021) having a coupon of 5.75% issued on the 22
December 2014 (the “2014 Bonds”);
o three million Euro (€3,000,000) ten-year bonds (maturing in 2025) having a coupon of 5.25% issued on the 4
December 2015; and

-

six million Euro (€6,000,000) through a bond programme in 2017, pursuant to which there was a single issue of ten-year bonds
(maturing in 2027) having a coupon of 4.4% issued on the 7 July 2017.

Each issue is unsecured and listed on the Official List of the MSE and has been admitted to trading on the regulated market in Malta.
Part of the proceeds from the Bond Issue (circa €3 million) will be utilised to repay the 2014 Bonds.
In addition to the above, the Issuer has previously obtained finance through the following financing arrangements:
a. the 2014 Subordinated Loan Agreements;
b. the 2017 Subordinated Loan Agreement; and
c. the 2021 Subordinated Loan Agreement.
Please see section 5.4 of this Registration Document with respect to the termination of the 2014 Subordinated Loan Agreements and
2017 Subordinated Loan Agreements.
The main terms of the 400K Loan Agreement are available for viewing at the registered office of the Company for the lifetime of the 2017
Bond Issuance Programme. The main terms of the 2021 Subordinated Loan Agreement are contained below.
Repayment date: the repayment of principal and interest (if applicable) under the 2021 Subordinated Loan Agreement must be made by
the 25th anniversary of the date of execution of the final deed of sale and purchase of the Property or under such other terms as may be
agreed to by the parties in writing from time to time;
Repayment of principal and any interest is subordinated to the rights of bond holders: the repayment of principal and interest (if
applicable) under the 2021 Subordinated Loan Agreement is subordinated to any and all monetary obligations of the Issuer toward the
2014 Existing Bondholders under the 2014 Bond Issuance Programme, toward the 2017 Existing Bondholders under the 2017 Bond
Issuance Programme and toward the Bondholders. This refers but is not limited to the obligation of the Issuer to pay principal and interest
and any other payment obligations under the 2014 Bond Issuance Programme, the 2017 Bond Issuance Programme and under this Bond
Issue. Accordingly, no repayment of the principal and interest (if applicable) under the 2021 Subordinated Loan Agreement shall be
affected by the Issuer, and no claim for such payment shall be made by SMW Cortis as lender until such time as all amounts due on the
Bonds and on the 2014 Existing Bonds and the 2017 Existing Bonds shall have been repaid in full by the Issuer to the Bondholders and to
the 2014 Existing Bondholders and the 2017 Existing Bondholders;
Modes of repayment: the repayment of principal and interest (if applicable) by the Issuer under the 2021 Subordinated Loan Agreement
may be made in cash or, at the sole discretion of the Issuer, by way of the issue of shares in the Issuer in favour of SMW Cortis or in
favour of any other party indicated by SMW Cortis at par value; and
Interest payments: interest-free unless otherwise agreed from time to time in writing, provided that: a two year moratorium from the
date of the 2021 Subordinated Loan Agreement shall apply in all cases; any interest charge that may be agreed to shall in no case be in
excess of 5% per annum; and any interest accruing as a result of the parties agreeing to apply interest following the lapse of the said twoyear moratorium shall not become payable by the Issuer until such time as all principal and interest on the 2014 Existing Bonds and the
2017 Existing Bonds shall have been repaid in full by the Issuer in accordance with the terms of the 2014 Bond Issuance Programme and
the 2017 Bond Issuance Programme respectively.

5.4

TERMINATION AGREEMENT
By virtue of the Termination Agreement, each of the loans due by the Issuer to SMW Cortis Limited and Lapsi Court Limited in terms of
the 2014 Subordinated Loan Agreements (with the exception of the 400K Loan Agreement which shall remain in place) and the 2017
Subordinated Loan Agreements have been cancelled and waived.
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6. BUSINESS OVERVIEW
6.1

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY
The Issuer’s key objects and activities are set out in its Memorandum of Association, and include, but are not limited to the carrying on
the business of a finance, investment, property development and property-owning company and the financing or re-financing of the
funding requirements of the business of its subsidiaries and/or associated companies.
In recent years, the Issuer has purchased, developed and operated various business centres. On the date of the Prospectus:
i.
ii.
iii.
iv.

CBC Zebbug enjoys a 100% occupancy of available office space and car park facilities;
CBC Gudja enjoys a 100% occupancy of available office space and car park facilities;
CBC St. Julian’s enjoys a 57% occupancy of available office space and car park facilities, and
Zebbug Business Premises enjoys a 100% occupancy of proposed areas and parking facilities.

Following planning approval and in accordance with permit number PA/1707/19 Villa Fieres is currently undergoing restoration,
renovation and upgrading works on the basis of a change in use of the residential villa into a restaurant. It is expected to be complete
toward the end of Q4 2021. Once complete, the Issuer will seek to secure a tenant to operate a Class 4D licence (food and drink
establishment) at the site.
The valuation reports pertaining to the Current Properties dated 02 September 2021 issued by Arch. Joseph Cassar are set out in Annex
I of this Registration Document.
As also described in the 2017 Prospectus, on the 16 February 2017, the Issuer and SMW Cortis entered into a lease in relation to the
lease of Property B pursuant to which SMW Cortis granted Property B on lease to the Issuer. Property B is to be used to provide access
to the basement levels under Property A. Pursuant to a letter dated 3 November 2016, the Government Property Division (Joint Office)
alleged that SMW Cortis had failed to observe two conditions found in the Property B Deed, namely: (i) that Property B is to be used as
an extension to the existing factory in accordance with a plan attached to the same deed, the failure to use the property as such, resulting
in the recession of the deed; and (ii) that improvements having a value of not less than €46,588 (equivalent to Lm 20,000) had to be
erected on the site within two years from the date of the emphyteutical concession.
SMW Cortis has officially rebutted these allegations on the basis that Property B has been used as a timber yard annexed to the existing
factory and that works having a value which is higher than the amount stipulated in the emphyteutical concession had been carried out
on the site. SMW Cortis believes that it will successfully rebut these allegations. The unsuccessful rebuttal of the claims could result in
Government Property Division (Joint Office) attempting to attack the validity of the aforementioned lease. Following this rebuttal, there
has been no update with respect to the claim made by Government Property Division (Joint Office).
The Issuer operates exclusively in and from Malta.

6.2

THE PROPERTY
The Issuer has identified the Property, which it intends to acquire and operate in accordance with its current operational use. The
Property currently enjoys just under 50% occupancy and is better described in the Valuation Report. As on the date of this Prospectus,
CBC has entered into the Promise of Sale agreement with Calthon Limited (C 5061) for the purchase and acquisition of the Property which
is expected to take place following receipt of the proceeds from the Bond Issue.
The Issuer expects that following the acquisition of the Property, it will be managed and operated in a manner similar to the Current
Properties. Therefore, the Issuer intends to enter into an arrangement with SMW Cortis for the provision of support in the form of staff
manning the day to day operations of the Properties. This would encompass negotiations with current and prospective tenants and
thereafter acting as liaison officer between the Issuer and the tenants.

7. TREND INFORMATION AND FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
There has been no material adverse change in the prospects of the Issuer since the date of publication of its latest audited financial
statements. At the time of publication of this Prospectus, the Issuer considers that it is generally subject to the normal business risks
associated with the real estate market and barring unforeseen circumstances, does not anticipate any trends, uncertainties, demands,
commitments or events outside the ordinary course of business that could be deemed likely to have a material effect on its upcoming
prospects, for at least the current financial year.
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The Directors are of the view that there is still an active demand for the rental of commercial property generally, particularly because
Malta’s economy is largely based on the services sector, rendering quality commercial space increasingly attractive to employers wishing
to enhance their professional image.
The Directors are satisfied that their targets of renting out the commercial space available at the Zebbug CBC and the Gudja CBC have
been achieved and will strive toward 100% occupancy at CBC St. Julian’s and Villa Fieres. The Directors are confident of achieving high
occupancy levels at the Property, firstly due to the fact that it is current 50% occupied and secondly, due to the location and current
standing of the Property.
The Issuer has now garnered experience with respect to operations in the property development sector and the Issuer’s strategy for the
foreseeable future is to continue developing its assets with a view to realising and maximising their financial potential as well as exploring
new opportunities on the local market.

8. FINANCIAL INFORMATION
8.1

HISTORICAL FINANCIAL INFORMATION
The Company’s historical audited financial statements for the years ended 31 December 2018, 2019 and 2020 and the interim financial
statements for the period 01 January 2021 to 30 June 2021, all of which are, in accordance with Article 19(1) of the Regulation,
incorporated by reference in this Registration Document and also available on the Company’s website and at the registered office of the
Company as described in section 15 of this Registration Document. The audit reports of these three financial years do not contain any
qualification, modification of opinion, disclaimers or emphasis of matter.
The following are a list of cross-references to specific items of information in the Company’s audited financial statements (which are
available on display as detailed in section 14) for financial years ended 31 December 2018, 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2020:
Page Number in Annual Financial Statements

Independent Auditors’ Report
Statement of Financial Position
Income Statement
Statement of Cash Flows
Notes to Financial Statements

Financial year ended
31 December 2018
9
16
17
19
20

Financial year ended
31 December 2019
9
16
17
19
20

Financial year ended
31 December 2020
12
19
18
21
22

The financial statements referred to in this section 8.1 can be accessed using the following link:

http://www.centralbusinesscentres.com/Investors/AnnualReports.aspx

8.2

SIGNIFICANT CHANGE IN THE COMPANY’S FINANCIAL POSITION
There has been no significant change in the financial position of the Company since 31 December 2020.

9. ADMINISTRATIVE, MANAGEMENT AND SUPERVISORY BODIES AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT
9.1

THE BOARD
The Company is currently managed by a Board of Directors consisting of five (5) directors who are entrusted with the overall direction,
administration and management of the Company. As at the date of this Registration Document, the Board of Directors of the Company
is constituted by the following persons:
Directors
Joseph Cortis
(Maltese ID Card No. 712056M)

Executive Director and Chairman
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Petramay Attard Cortis
(Maltese ID Card No. 290085M)

Non-Executive Director

Adriana Cutajar
(Maltese ID Card No. 18686M)

Non-Executive Director

Joseph M Formosa
(Maltese I.D Card No. 362849M)

Non-Executive Director

Alfred Sladden
(Maltese ID Card No. 589137M)

Non-Executive Director

As per the Company’s Corporate Governance – Statement of Compliance, Mr Joseph M. Formosa and Mr Alfred Sladden are considered
independent.
The Company Secretary is Dr Desiree Cassar (Maltese ID Card No. 175178M).
The following is a curriculum vitae of each of the board members.
Joseph Cortis
Joseph Cortis has been involved in the management of Cortis Group since 1988, holding the position of Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer. In his role as Chief Executive Officer, Joseph Cortis was responsible for the strategy of SMW Cortis group and its growth. He has
actively participated as a member of various committees and councils such as the Federation of Industry Council, the Malta Chamber of
Commerce, Enterprise and Industry, and the Malta Institute of Management.
He oversaw the management of Zebbug CBC from the development of the said property, throughout the rental of the commercial spaces
forming part of the said property and is involved in overseeing its management to date.
Petramay Attard Cortis
Petramay Attard Cortis MD, DESA, MMEd (Dundee) is a third-generation family member of Cortis group of companies. Has been an active
member of the Cortis Group, Youth Family Council (YFC) since its inception in 2007. The YFC is involved with Succession Planning and the
group’s Corporate Social Responsibility Programme. Petramay has been the Chairperson of the YFC since 2017. Throughout the past
fifteen years, was involved in various aspects of the business including marketing; sales; social media; event management; customer
relations; and business strategy.
Currently employed in the public service as a specialist anaesthetist at Mater Dei Hospital, she has considerable experience with medical
audit and quality improvement initiatives. Involved in course organization, course direction and teaching on the local and international
level, with the University of Malta and the European Resuscitation Council, she has delivered lectures at international congresses and in
2016, won the prestigious Young Teaching Recognition Award awarded by the European Society of Anaesthesiology.
Adriana Cutajar
Adriana Cutajar B.Com. (Hons)(Melit.), M.B.A. (ARU) is a third-generation family member of the Cortis group and has been an active
member of the Cortis Group, Youth Family Council (YFC) for eight years, holding the YFC Chairperson role for two of these. Adriana held
the position of marketing executive for the Cortis Group of Companies for two years.
For these past ten years was employed at the University of Malta. Currently, a Manager at the Project Support Office which is responsible
for externally funded projects. Has extensive experience in project implementation, monitoring budgets, mentoring and supervising large
teams and liaising with auditors, legal advisors and national authorities. Adriana recently obtained a Diploma in EU Funds Management
and is in possession of the PRINCE 2 Foundation Certificate in Project Management.
Joseph M Formosa
Joseph M Formosa has had a 35 years career with Bank of Valletta plc where he held various positions in financial control, asset and
liability management, strategy, risk, marketing, mortgages and personal credit. He was Chairman of the bank’s Card Services company
which was mainly responsible for the successful international programme called “Malta Welcomes Visa”
He also held the position of General Manager of Lohombus Bank Ltd (a joint venture between Mid-Med Bank and Bank of Valletta that
specialized in home loans). When acquired by HSBC, Joseph was responsible for restructuring.
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Joseph is a Fellow of the Chartered Institute of Marketing-UK and a Fellow of the Chartered Management Institute, holds a certificate in
Banking (Institute of Bankers-UK), Diploma in Insurance (The Chartered Insurance Institute-UK) as well as a Diploma course in Law and
Administration (University of Malta), and other certificates in financial services and compliance as well as awards in anti-money
laundering and financing of terrorism. Currently, practicing as a financial and management consultant also holding a number of nonexecutive positions on the board of directors of various companies and financial institutions in Malta.
Alfred Sladden
Alfred Sladden commenced his career at Barclays Bank, Malta, in 1954 until his appointment to senior training manager with Barclays
Bank, London, in 1968. He held such office for three years until 1971. Throughout the years that followed, he continued to hold several
posts with credit institutions, including manager of various branches of Barclays Bank, credit advisor of Bank of Valletta, head of internal
audit at Mid-Med Bank, Assistant General Manager on administration, and Assistant General Manager of the international finance
division as well as Deputy General Manager on corporate strategy at Mid-Med Bank.
In 1994, he was appointed General Manager of Investment Finance Bank and held such post until 1995 whilst also holding the post of
director of Mid-Med Life Insurance until 1996. He also held the post of general manager of finance and operations at Mid-Med Bank
between 1995 and 1998. Between 1998-1999, he was appointed chairman of Maltapost and the Foundation for Medical Services. For
nine years, between 1999-2008, he held a part time post as Financial Adviser of the Eurochange Financial Services whilst simultaneously
holding a part time post as Chairman of the VAT Appeals Board from 1999 until 2011. He was Executive Director of an affiliate company
of the Corinthia Group of the Czech Republic between 2000 and 2010 and also held the post of financial adviser of Technoline Ltd between
2009-2013.

9.2

SENIOR MANAGEMENT OF THE COMPANY
The Issuer is party to an arrangement with SMW Cortis for the provision of management services relating to the day-to-day operation of
the Current Properties (the “Management Agreement”).
The Directors are of the view that the smooth running of the day to day management of the Issuer’s business is guaranteed through this
arrangement. The Management Agreement is valid for renewable periods of three years each. As from the 01 January 2022, the
management fee payable in terms of the said Management Agreement is a rate of 2% of the aggregate monthly rental income received
by the Issuer from the lease agreements with tenants leasing out units at the Current Properties and in respect of which the said
management support services are provided.
Additionally, the Issuer has entered into a separate agreement with SMW Cortis in connection with the provision, by the latter company,
of maintenance services at the Current Properties (the “Maintenance Agreement”). The Maintenance Agreement is valid for a renewable
period of three years. As from the 01 January 2022, the maintenance fee payable in terms of the Maintenance Agreement is either 5%
or 10% of the net monthly rental income received by the Issuer from the tenants (exclusive of tax) depending on the particular property.

9.3

CONFLICTS OF INTEREST
Mr. Joseph Cortis is a Director and a director on SMW Cortis and Lapsi Court Limited (C 896). Accordingly, conflicts of interest could
potentially arise in relation to transactions involving the Issuer, SMW Cortis and Lapsi Court Limited (C 896).
However, any potential conflicts of interests are managed through the measures in place as better described in section 5.2 of this
Registration Document.
Other than those disclosed above, the Directors are not aware of any potential conflicts of interest which could relate to their roles within
the Company.

9.4

DECLARATION
None of the Directors, members of the Board committees or members of senior management referred to in this section 9 of this
Registration Document have, in the last five years:
been the subject of any convictions in relation to fraudulent offences;
been associated with bankruptcies, receiverships or liquidations (other than voluntary) in respect of entities in respect of which
they were members of administrative, management or supervisory bodies, partners with unlimited liability (in the case of a
limited partnership with a share capital), founders or members of senior management;
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-

been the subject of any official public incrimination and/or sanctions by statutory or regulatory authorities (including
designated professional bodies); or
been disqualified by a court from acting as a member of the administrative, management or supervisory bodies of a company
or from acting in the management or conduct of the affairs of any company.

10.LEGAL AND ARBITRATION PROCEEDINGS
There are no governmental, legal or arbitration proceedings, either actual or threatened, during a period covering the previous twelve
(12) months which may have or have had a significant effect on the Company’s financial position or profitability.

11.MATERIAL CONTRACTS
There are no contracts that have been entered into outside the Company’s ordinary course of business which could result in any group
member being under an obligation or an entitlement that is material to the Company’s ability to meet its obligations to security holders
in respect of the securities being issued.

12.DISCLOSURE UNDER MARKET ABUSE REGULATIONS
There is no information that has been disclosed under Regulation (EU) No 596/2014 over the last 12 months which is relevant as at the
date of the Prospectus.

13.INTEREST OF EXPERTS AND ADVISERS
Save for the property valuation report set out as Annex I to this Registration Document and the financial analysis summary set out as
Annex II to the Securities Note, the Prospectus does not contain any statement or report attributed to any person as an expert.
The property valuation report has been included in the form and context in which it appears with the authorization of Architect Joe
Cassar, who has given, and has not withdrawn, his consent to the inclusion of the said report herein. Architect Joe Cassar does not have
any material interest in the Issuer. The Issuer confirms that the property valuation report has been accurately reproduced in the
Prospectus, and that there are no facts of which the Issuer is aware, that have been omitted and which would render the reproduced
information inaccurate or misleading.
The financial analysis summary has been included in the form and context in which they appear with the authorisation of Calamatta
Cuschieri Investment Services Limited, which has given and has not withdrawn its consent to the inclusion of such reports herein.
Calamatta Cuschieri Investment Services Limited does not have any material interest in the Company. The Company confirms that the
financial analysis summary has been accurately reproduced in the Prospectus and that there are no facts of which the Company is aware
that have been omitted and which would render the reproduced information inaccurate or misleading.

14.DOCUMENTS ON DISPLAY
For the duration period of this Registration Document the following documents shall be available for inspection at the registered address
of the Company during office hours:
i.

the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Issuer;

ii.

the audited financial statements of the Issuer for the years ended 31 December 2018, 2019 and 2020;

iii.

the unaudited interim financial statements of the Issuer for the six-month period ended 30 June 2021;

iv.

the Financial Analysis Summary dated 24 September 2021 and prepared by Calamatta Cuschieri Investment Services Limited,
as reproduced in Annex II of the Securities Note;

v.

property valuation report dated 02 September 2021 been prepared by Architect Joe Cassar, as reproduced in Annex I of this
Registration Document; and
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vi.

the Promise of Sale Agreement.

The documents listed above are also available for inspection in electronic form on the Issuer's website:
http://www.centralbusinesscentres.com

Registration Document – Central Business Centres plc

17

ANNEX I – PROPERTY VALUATION REPORT
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SECURITIES NOTE
Dated 24 September 2021
This document is a Securities Note issued in accordance with the provisions of Chapter 4 of the Capital Markets Rules published by
the Malta Financial Services Authority and of the Prospectus Regulation. This Securities Note is issued pursuant to the requirements
of Capital Markets Rule 4.14 of the Capital Markets Rules and contains information about the Bonds being offered by the Issuer
pursuant to the Bond Issue. Application has been made for the admission to listing and trading of the Bonds of the Company on
the Official List of the Malta Stock Exchange. This Securities Note should be read in conjunction with the most updated Registration
Document issued from time to time containing information about the Company.
In respect of an Issue of:

€21,000,000 4% Unsecured Bonds 2033
of a nominal value of €100 per Bond issued at par
(due 10 November 2033, subject to early redemption at the option of the Issuer on any Early Redemption Date)
ISIN: MT0000881236

CENTRAL BUSINESS CENTRES PLC
A public limited liability company registered in Malta with company registration number C 65702
Legal Counsel

Sponsor, Manager & Registrar

Mamo TCV Advocates

Calamatta Cuschieri
Investment Services Limited

THIS SECURITIES NOTE HAS BEEN DRAWN UP AS PART OF A SIMPLIFIED PROSPECTUS IN ACCORDANCE WITH ARTICLE 14 OF THE PROSPECTUS
REGULATION AND HAS BEEN APPROVED BY THE MALTA FINANCIAL SERVICES AUTHORITY, AS COMPETENT AUTHORITY UNDER THE PROSPECTUS
REGULATION. THE MALTA FINANCIAL SERVICES AUTHORITY ONLY APPROVED THIS SECURITIES NOTE AS MEETING THE STANDARDS OF
COMPLETENESS, COMPREHENSIBILITY AND CONSISTENCY IMPOSED BY THE PROSPECTUS REGULATION. SUCH APPROVAL SHOULD NOT BE
CONSIDERED AS AN ENDORSEMENT OF THE ISSUER AND THE SECURITIES THAT ARE THE SUBJECT OF THIS SECURITIES NOTE. INVESTORS SHOULD
MAKE THEIR OWN ASSESSMENT AS TO THE SUITABILITY OF INVESTING IN THE SECURITIES, THE SUBJECT OF THIS SECURITIES NOTE.
THE MALTA FINANCIAL SERVICES AUTHORITY ACCEPTS NO RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONTENTS OF THE PROSPECTUS, MAKES NO
REPRESENTATIONS AS TO ITS ACCURACY OR COMPLETENESS AND EXPRESSLY DISCLAIMS ANY LIABILITY WHATSOEVER FOR ANY LOSS HOWSOEVER
ARISING FROM OR IN RELIANCE UPON THE WHOLE OR ANY PART OF THE CONTENTS OF THE PROSPECTUS, INCLUDING ANY LOSSES INCURRED BY
INVESTING IN THE SECURITIES, THE SUBJECT OF THIS SECURITIES NOTE.
A PROSPECTIVE INVESTOR SHOULD ALWAYS SEEK INDEPENDENT FINANCIAL ADVICE BEFORE DECIDING TO INVEST IN ANY LISTED FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS. A PROSPECTIVE INVESTOR SHOULD BE AWARE OF THE POTENTIAL RISKS IN INVESTING IN THE SECURITIES OF AN ISSUER AND
SHOULD MAKE THE DECISION TO INVEST ONLY AFTER CAREFUL CONSIDERATION AND CONSULTATION WITH HIS OR HER OWN INDEPENDENT
FINANCIAL ADVISER.

Approved by the Directors

Joseph Cortis
in his capacity as Director of the Company
and for and on behalf of: Petramay Attard Cortis, Adriana Cutajar, Joseph M Formosa and Alfred Sladden
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IMPORTANT INFORMATION
THIS SECURITIES NOTE CONTAINS INFORMATION ON AN ISSUE BY THE COMPANY IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE REQUIREMENTS OF
THE ACT, THE CAPITAL MARKETS RULES AND THE PROSPECTUS REGULATION. THIS SECURITIES NOTE CONTAINS INFORMATION ON
AN ISSUE BY THE ISSUER OF €21,000,000 UNSECURED BONDS 2033 OF A NOMINAL VALUE OF €100 PER BOND ISSUED AT PAR AND
BEARING INTEREST AT THE RATE OF 4% PER ANNUM PAYABLE ANNUALLY ON 10 NOVEMBER OF EACH YEAR UNTIL THE
REDEMPTION DATE UNLESS THE COMPANY EXERCISES THE OPTION TO REDEEM ALL OR PART OF THE BONDS ON ANY OF THE EARLY
REDEMPTION DATES. THE NOMINAL VALUE OF THE BONDS WILL BE REPAYABLE IN FULL AT MATURITY ON THE REDEMPTION DATE
UNLESS OTHERWISE PREVIOUSLY REPURCHASED FOR CANCELLATION OR UNLESS OTHERWISE PREVIOUSLY REDEEMED AT THE
OPTION OF THE ISSUER ON ANY OF THE EARLY REDEMPTION DATES.
AUTHORISED FINANCIAL INTERMEDIARIES MUST UNDERTAKE AN APPROPRIATENESS TEST AND, WHEN PROVIDING ADVICE IN
RESPECT OF A PURCHASE OF THE BONDS, A SUITABILITY TEST, ON PROSPECTIVE BONDHOLDERS IN ORDER TO BE SATISFIED THAT
THE BONDS ARE A SUITABLE INVESTMENT FOR THE RESPECTIVE CLIENT, PRIOR TO EXECUTING A PURCHASE OF THE BONDS. NO
BROKER, DEALER, SALESMAN OR OTHER PERSON HAS BEEN AUTHORISED BY THE COMPANY OR ITS DIRECTORS TO ISSUE ANY
ADVERTISEMENT OR TO GIVE ANY INFORMATION OR TO MAKE ANY REPRESENTATIONS IN CONNECTION WITH THE SECURITIES OF
THE COMPANY OTHER THAN THOSE CONTAINED IN THIS SECURITIES NOTE AND IN THE DOCUMENTS REFERRED TO HEREIN, AND
IF GIVEN OR MADE, SUCH INFORMATION OR REPRESENTATIONS MUST NOT BE RELIED UPON AS HAVING BEEN AUTHORISED BY
THE COMPANY, ITS DIRECTORS OR ADVISERS. THE PROSPECTUS DOES NOT CONSTITUTE, AND MAY NOT BE USED FOR PURPOSES
OF, AN OFFER OR INVITATION TO SUBSCRIBE FOR SECURITIES ISSUED BY THE ISSUER BY ANY PERSON IN ANY JURISDICTION: (I) IN
WHICH SUCH OFFER OR INVITATION IS NOT AUTHORISED; OR (II) IN WHICH THE PERSON MAKING SUCH OFFER OR INVITATION IS
NOT QUALIFIED TO DO SO; OR (III) TO ANY PERSON TO WHOM IT IS UNLAWFUL TO MAKE SUCH OFFER OR INVITATION. IT IS THE
RESPONSIBILITY OF ANY PERSON IN POSSESSION OF THE PROSPECTUS AND ANY PERSONS WISHING TO ACQUIRE ANY SECURITIES
ISSUED BY THE COMPANY TO INFORM THEMSELVES OF, AND TO OBSERVE AND COMPLY WITH, ALL APPLICABLE LAWS AND
REGULATIONS OF ANY RELEVANT JURISDICTION. PROSPECTIVE INVESTORS FOR ANY SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY ADMITTED TO
TRADING ON THE MSE SHOULD INFORM THEMSELVES AS TO THE LEGAL REQUIREMENTS OF SO APPLYING FOR ANY SUCH
SECURITIES AND OF ANY APPLICABLE EXCHANGE CONTROL REQUIREMENTS AND TAXES IN THE COUNTRIES OF THEIR NATIONALITY,
RESIDENCE OR DOMICILE.
SAVE FOR THE OFFERING IN THE REPUBLIC OF MALTA, NO ACTION HAS BEEN OR WILL BE TAKEN BY THE ISSUER THAT WOULD
PERMIT A PUBLIC OFFERING OF THE SECURITIES DESCRIBED IN THE SECURITIES NOTE OR THE DISTRIBUTION OF THE PROSPECTUS
(OR ANY PART THEREOF) OR ANY OFFERING MATERIAL IN ANY COUNTRY OR JURISDICTION WHERE ACTION FOR THAT PURPOSE IS
REQUIRED.
IN RELATION TO EACH MEMBER STATE OF THE EUROPEAN ECONOMIC AREA (OTHER THAN MALTA) WHICH HAS IMPLEMENTED
THE PROSPECTUS REGULATION ON THE PROSPECTUS TO BE PUBLISHED WHEN SECURITIES ARE OFFERED TO THE PUBLIC OR
ADMITTED TO TRADING OR WHICH, PENDING SUCH IMPLEMENTATION, APPLIES ARTICLE 3.2 OF SAID REGULATION, THE
SECURITIES CAN ONLY BE OFFERED TO “QUALIFIED INVESTORS” (AS DEFINED IN SAID REGULATION) AS WELL AS IN ANY OTHER
CIRCUMSTANCES WHICH DO NOT REQUIRE THE PUBLICATION BY THE ISSUER OF A PROSPECTUS PURSUANT TO ARTICLE 3 OF SAID
REGULATION.
A COPY OF THIS DOCUMENT HAS BEEN SUBMITTED TO THE MALTA FINANCIAL SERVICES AUTHORITY IN SATISFACTION OF THE
CAPITAL MARKETS RULES AND TO THE MALTA STOCK EXCHANGE IN SATISFACTION OF THE MALTA STOCK EXCHANGE BYE-LAWS.
STATEMENTS MADE IN THIS SECURITIES NOTE ARE, EXCEPT WHERE OTHERWISE STATED, BASED ON THE LAW AND PRACTICE
CURRENTLY IN FORCE IN MALTA (AS APPLICABLE) AND ARE SUBJECT TO CHANGES THEREIN.
ALL THE ADVISERS TO THE COMPANY NAMED IN THE REGISTRATION DOCUMENT UNDER THE HEADING “ADVISERS AND
STATUTORY AUDITORS” IN SECTION 5 OF THE REGISTRATION DOCUMENT HAVE ACTED AND ARE ACTING EXCLUSIVELY FOR THE
COMPANY IN RELATION TO THIS PUBLIC OFFER AND HAVE NO CONTRACTUAL, FIDUCIARY OR OTHER OBLIGATION TOWARDS ANY
OTHER PERSON AND WILL, ACCORDINGLY, NOT BE RESPONSIBLE TO ANY INVESTOR OR ANY OTHER PERSON WHOMSOEVER IN
RELATION TO THE TRANSACTIONS PROPOSED IN THE PROSPECTUS.THE INFORMATION ON THE ISSUER’S WEBSITE DOES NOT FORM
PART OF THE PROSPECTUS UNLESS THAT INFORMATION IS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE INTO THE PROSPECTUS.
THE VALUE OF INVESTMENTS CAN GO UP OR DOWN AND PAST PERFORMANCE IS NOT NECESSARILY INDICATIVE OF FUTURE
PERFORMANCE. PROSPECTIVE INVESTORS SHOULD CAREFULLY CONSIDER ALL THE INFORMATION CONTAINED IN THE
PROSPECTUS AS A WHOLE AND SHOULD CONSULT THEIR OWN INDEPENDENT FINANCIAL AND OTHER PROFESSIONAL ADVISERS.
THIS SECURITIES NOTE IS VALID FOR A PERIOD OF 12 MONTHS FROM THE DATE THEREOF. FOLLOWING THE LAPSE OF THIS
VALIDITY PERIOD, THE ISSUER IS NOT OBLIGED TO SUPPLEMENT THIS SECURITIES NOTE IN THE EVENT OF SIGNIFICANT NEW
FACTORS, MATERIAL MISTAKES OR MATERIAL INACCURACIES.
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1.

DEFINITIONS

Words and expressions and capitalised terms used in this Securities Note shall, except where the context otherwise requires and
except where otherwise defined herein, bear the same meaning as the meaning given to such words, expressed and capitalised
terms as indicated in the Registration Document forming part of the Prospectus. Additionally, the following words and expressions
as used in this Securities Note shall bear the following meanings whenever such words and expressions are used in their capitalised
form, except where the context otherwise requires:

Applicant/s

an applicant for the Bonds, either through the submission of an Application
Form or through the subscription via an Authorised Financial Intermediary;

Application/s

the application/s to subscribe for the Bonds made by the Applicant/s;

Application Form/s

the forms of application for subscription for the Bonds;

Appropriateness Test

shall have the meaning set out in section 7.2 of this Securities Note;

Authorised Financial Intermediaries

the licensed stockbrokers and financial intermediaries as listed in Annex I of this
Securities Note;

Bond Issue Price

the price of €100 per Bond;

Business Day

any day between Monday and Friday (both days included) on which commercial
banks in Malta settle payments and are open for normal banking business;

CSD

the Central Securities Depository of the Malta Stock Exchange authorised in
terms of Part IV of the Financial Markets Act (Cap. 345 of the laws of Malta),
having its address at Garrison Chapel, Castille Place, Valletta VLT 1063, Malta;

Early Redemption Date/s

the 10 November of each of the years 2027-2032 (both years inclusive) subject
to the Issuer giving the Bondholders at least sixty (60) Business Days’ notice in
writing;

Interest Payment Date

10 November of each year between and including each of the years 2022 and
the year 2033, both years included, provided that if any such day is not a
Business Day such Interest Payment Date will be carried over to the next
following day that is a Business Day;

Intermediaries Offer

the offer of Bonds to the Authorised Financial Intermediaries, either for their
own account or for the account of underlying customers;

Issue Date

10 November 2021;

MiFIR

Regulation (EU) No 600/2014 of the European Parliament and of the Council of
15 May 2014 on markets in financial instruments;

Offer Period

the period between (and including) 6 October 2021 to 27 October 2021 during
which the Bonds will be available for subscription;

Official List

the list prepared and published by the Malta Stock Exchange as its official list in
accordance with the Malta Stock Exchange Bye-Laws;

Redemption Date

10 November 2033;

Redemption Value

the nominal value of each Bond (€100 per Bond);

Sponsor, Manager & Registrar

Calamatta Cuschieri Investment Services Limited, Ewropa Business Centre, Triq
Dun Karm, Birkirkara BKR 9034, Malta;

Suitability Test

shall have the meaning set out in section 7.2 of this Securities Note; and

Terms and Conditions

the terms and conditions of issue of the Bonds set out in sections 5 and 7 of this
Securities Note.
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All references in the Prospectus to “Malta” are to the “Republic of Malta”.
Unless it appears otherwise from the context:
a. words importing the singular shall include the plural and vice-versa;
b. words importing the masculine gender shall include also the feminine gender and vice-versa;
c. the word “may” shall be construed as permissive and the word “shall” shall be construed as imperative; and
d. the word “person” shall refer to both natural and legal persons.

2.

RISK FACTORS

The value of investments can go up or down and past performance is not necessarily indicative of future performance.
The nominal value of the Bonds will be repayable in full upon maturity on the redemption date unless the Bonds are previously
re-purchased and cancelled or redeemed in whole or in part on any one or more of the Early Redemption Dates.
An investment in the Bonds involves certain risks including those described below. Prospective investors should carefully
consider, with their own independent financial and other professional advisers, the following risk factors and other investment
considerations as well as all the other information contained in the Prospectus before deciding to make an investment in the
Bonds. The sequence in which the risks below are listed is intended to be indicative of the order of priority and to the extent of
their consequences.
Neither this Securities Note, nor any other parts of the Prospectus or any other information supplied in connection with the
Bonds: (i) is intended to provide the basis of any credit or other evaluation; or (ii) should be considered as a recommendation
by the advisers to the Issuer or the Authorised Financial Intermediaries that any recipient of this Securities Note or any other
part of the Prospectus or any other information supplied in connection with the Prospectus or the Bonds, should purchase any
Bonds.
Accordingly, prospective investors should make their own independent evaluation of all risk factors and should consider all
other sections in this document.

2.1

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS
This Securities Note contains “forward-looking statements” which include, among others, statements concerning matters that are
not historical facts and which may involve projections of future circumstances. These forward-looking statements are subject to a
number of risks, uncertainties and assumptions and important factors that could cause actual risks to differ materially from the
expectations of the Directors. No assurance is given that the future results or expectations will be achieved.
2.2

SUITABILITY OF THE INVESTMENT
The Bonds are complex financial instruments and may not be suitable for all recipients of the Prospectus and prospective investors
are urged to consult an independent investment adviser licensed under the Investment Services Act (Cap. 370 of the laws of Malta)
as to the suitability or otherwise of an investment in the Bonds before making an investment decision. In particular, such advice
should be sought with a view to ascertaining that each prospective investor:
a)
b)

c)
d)

2.3

has sufficient knowledge and experience to make a meaningful evaluation of the Bonds, the merits and risks of investing
in the Bonds and the information contained or incorporated by reference in the Prospectus or any applicable supplement;
has sufficient financial resources and liquidity to bear all the risks of an investment in the Bonds, including where the
currency for principal or interest payments is different from the prospective investor’s currency and that the Bonds meet
the investment objectives of the prospective investor;
understands thoroughly the terms of the Bonds and be familiar with the behaviour of any relevant indices and financial
markets; and
be able to evaluate possible scenarios for economic, interest rate and other factors that may affect its investment and its
ability to bear the applicable risks.

RISKS RELATING TO THE BONDS
a.

Status and ranking of the Bonds

The Bonds constitute the general, direct, unconditional and unsecured obligations of the Issuer and shall at all times rank pari
passu, without any priority or preference among themselves and with other unsecured debt of the Issuer. Furthermore, subject to
the negative pledge clause, third party security interests may be registered which will rank in priority to the Bonds against the
assets of the Issuer for so long as such security interests remain in effect.
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b.

Orderly and liquid secondary market

The impact of CoVID-19, and other infectious illness outbreaks that may arise in the future, could adversely affect the economies
of many nations or the entire global economy, individual issuers and capital markets in ways that cannot necessarily be foreseen.
The existence of an orderly and liquid market for the Bonds depends on a number of factors, including but not limited to the
presence of willing buyers and sellers of the Bonds at any given time and the general economic conditions in the market in which
the Bonds are traded. Such factors are dependent upon the individual decisions of investors and the general economic conditions
of the market, over which the Issuer has no control. Accordingly, there can be no assurance that an active secondary market for
the Bonds will develop, or, if it develops, that it will continue. Furthermore, there can be no assurance that an investor will be able
to trade in the Bonds at all.
c.

Early redemption of Bonds

Any or all of the Bonds may be redeemed by the Issuer on any Early Redemption Date on at least sixty (60) Business Days’ prior
written notice to the relevant Bondholders. Once the Bonds are redeemed the relevant Bondholders will no longer be entitled to
any interest or other rights in relation to those Bonds. If Bonds are redeemed prior to the Maturity Date a Bondholder would not
receive the same return on investment that it would have received if they were redeemed on the Maturity Date. In addition,
Bondholders may not be able to re-invest the proceeds from an early redemption at yields that would have been received had they
not been redeemed. This optional redemption feature may also have a negative impact on the market value of the Bonds.
d.

Fixed interest rate

The Bonds shall carry a fixed coupon. Consequently, investment in the Bonds involves the risk that subsequent changes in market
interest rates may adversely affect the value of the Bonds. Investors should also be aware that the price of fixed rate bonds should
theoretically move adversely to changes in interest rates. When prevailing market interest rates are rising, their prices decline and
conversely, if market interest rates are declining, the prices of fixed rate bonds rise. This is called market risk since it arises only if
a Bondholder decides to sell the Bonds before maturity on the secondary market.
e.

Currency of reference

A Bondholder will bear the risk of any adverse fluctuations in exchange rates between the currency of denomination of the Bonds
(€) and the Bondholder’s currency of reference, if different. Such adverse fluctuations may impair the return of investment of the
Bondholder in real terms after taking into account the relevant exchange rate.
f.

Continuing obligations

After the Bonds are admitted to trading on the Official List of the MSE, the Issuer must remain in compliance with certain
requirements. The Malta Financial Services Authority has the authority to suspend trading of the Bonds if, inter alia, it comes to
believe that such a suspension is required for the protection of investors or of the integrity or reputation of the market.
Furthermore, the Malta Financial Services Authority may discontinue the listing of the Bonds if, inter alia, it is satisfied that, owing
to special circumstances, normal regular dealings in the Bonds are no longer possible, or upon the request of the Issuer or the MSE.
Any such trading suspensions or listing revocations/discontinuations described above, could have a material adverse effect on the
liquidity and value of the Bonds.
g.

Amendments to the Terms and Conditions of the Bonds

In the event that the Issuer wishes to amend any of the Terms and Conditions of the Bonds it shall call a meeting of Bondholders
in accordance with the provisions of section 5.12 of this Securities Note. These provisions permit defined majorities to bind all
Bondholders including Bondholders who did not attend and vote at the relevant meeting and Bondholders who voted in a manner
contrary to the majority.
h.

Changes in laws or regulations, or a failure to comply with any laws or regulations, may adversely affect the Company

The Company is subject to laws and regulations enacted by national and local governments. In particular, the Company is required
to comply with the applicable legislation in Malta. Compliance with, and monitoring of, applicable laws and regulations may be
difficult, time consuming and costly, as laws and regulations and their interpretation and application may change from time to
time. Failure by the Company to comply with applicable laws or regulations could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s
business, financial results, net asset value (NAV) or the value of the Bonds.
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3.

PERSONS RESPONSIBLE, CONSENT FOR USE OF THE PROSPECTUS &
AUTHORISATION STATEMENT

3.1

PERSONS RESPONSIBLE
This document includes information given in compliance with the Capital Markets Rules for the purpose of providing prospective
investors with information about the Issuer. All of the Directors accept responsibility for the information contained in this Securities
Note.
To the best of the knowledge and belief of the Directors, who have taken all reasonable care to ensure that such is the case, the
information contained in this Securities Note is in accordance with the facts and does not omit anything likely to affect the import
of such information. The Directors accept responsibility accordingly.

3.2

CONSENT FOR USE OF PROSPECTUS
Consent required in connection with the use of the Prospectus by the Authorised Financial Intermediaries:
For the purposes of any subscription for Bonds through any of the Authorised Financial Intermediaries during the Offer Period in
terms of this Securities Note and any subsequent resale, placement or other offering of Bonds by such Authorised Financial
Intermediaries in circumstances where there is no exemption from the requirement to publish a prospectus under the Prospectus
Regulation, the Issuer consents to the use of the Prospectus (and accepts responsibility for the information contained therein) with
respect to any such subsequent resale, placement or other offering of the Bonds, provided this is limited only:
i.
ii.
iii.

in respect of the Bonds subscribed for through Authorised Financial Intermediaries of this Securities Note during the
Offer Period;
to any resale or placement of the Bonds taking place in Malta; and
to any resale or placement of the Bonds taking place within the period of sixty (60) days from the date of the Prospectus.

None of the Issuer or its advisers accept any responsibility for any of the actions of any of the Authorised Financial Intermediaries,
including their compliance with applicable conduct of business rules or other local regulatory requirements or other securities law
requirements in relation to a resale or placement of Bonds.
Other than as set out above, neither the Issuer nor its advisers has authorised (nor do they authorise or consent to the use of this
Prospectus in connection with) the making of any public offer of the Bonds by any person in any circumstances. Any such
unauthorised offers are not made on behalf of the Issuer and neither the Issuer nor its advisers has any responsibility or liability
for the actions of any person making such offers.
Investors should enquire whether an intermediary is considered to be an Authorised Financial Intermediary in terms of the
Prospectus. If the investor is in doubt as to whether it can rely on the Prospectus and/or who is responsible for its contents, it
should obtain legal advice.
No person has been authorised to give any information or to make any representation not contained in or inconsistent with this
Prospectus. If given or made, it must not be relied upon as having been authorised by the Issuer or its advisers. The Issuer does not
accept responsibility for any information not contained in this Prospectus.
In the event of a resale, placement or other offering of the Bonds by an Authorised Financial Intermediary, the Authorised
Financial Intermediary will provide information to investors on the terms and conditions of the resale, placement or other
offering at the time such is made.
Any resale, placement or other offering of the Bonds to an investor by an Authorised Financial Intermediary will be made in
accordance with any terms and other arrangements in place between such Authorised Financial Intermediary and such investor
including as to price, allocations and settlement arrangements. Where such information is not contained in the Prospectus, it will
be the responsibility of the applicable Authorised Financial Intermediary at the time of such resale, placement or other offering to
provide the investor with that information and neither the Issuer nor the Sponsor, Manager & Registrar has any responsibility or
liability for such information.
Any Authorised Financial Intermediary using this Prospectus in connection with a resale, placement or other offering of the
Bonds subsequent to the Bond Issue shall, limitedly for the period of 60 days from the date of the Prospectus, publish on its
website a notice to the effect that it is using this Prospectus for such resale, placement or other offering in accordance with the
consent of the Issuer and the conditions attached thereto. The consent provided herein shall no longer apply following the lapse
of such period.
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Any new information with respect to Authorised Financial Intermediaries unknown at the time of approval of this Securities Note
will be made available through a company announcement which will also be made available on the Issuer’s website:
http://www.centralbusinesscentres.com/Investors.aspx

3.3

STATEMENT OF AUTHORISATION
This Securities Note has been drawn up as part of a simplified prospectus in accordance with Article 14 of the Prospectus Regulation
and has been approved by the Listing Authority, as competent authority under the Prospectus Regulation. The Malta Financial
Services Authority only approves this Securities Note as meeting the standards of completeness, comprehensibility and consistency
imposed by the Prospectus Regulation. Such approval should not be considered as an endorsement of the quality of the securities
that are the subject of this Securities Note. Investors should make their own assessment as to the suitability of investing in the
securities.

4.

ESSENTIAL INFORMATION

4.1

REASONS FOR THE ISSUE AND USE OF PROCEEDS
The proceeds from the Bond Issue, which net of Bond Issue expenses are expected to amount to approximately €20,700,000, will
be used by the Issuer for the following purposes, in the amounts and order of priority set out below:
a.
b.
c.

the amount of circa €17.5 million will be used to purchase the Property;
the amount of circa €3 million will be used to repay the 2014 Bonds; and
the amount of circa €200,000 will be used for general corporate funding purposes.

The Bond Issue is conditional upon: (a) 67% of the Bond Issue being subscribed for and (b) the Bonds being admitted to the Official
List.

4.2

EXPENSES
Professional fees and costs related to publicity, advertising, printing, listing, registration, sponsor, management, registrar fees,
selling commission and other miscellaneous expenses in connection with this Bond Issue are estimated to be circa €300,000. There
is no particular order of priority with respect to such expenses.
4.3

ISSUE STATISTICS

Amount:

€21 million;

Form:

The Bonds will be issued in fully registered and dematerialised form and will be
represented in uncertificated form by the appropriate entry in the electronic
register maintained on behalf of the Issuer at the CSD;

Denomination:

Euro (€);

ISIN:

MT0000881236;

Minimum amount per subscription:

Minimum of €2,000 and multiples of €100 thereafter;

Redemption Date:

10 November 2033;

Early Redemption Dates:

the 10 November of each of the years 2027-2032 (both years inclusive) subject to
the Issuer giving the Bondholders at least sixty (60) Business Days’ notice in writing;

Plan of Distribution:

The Bonds are open for subscription by all categories of investors, including the
general public;

Bond Issue Price:

At par (€100 per Bond);

Status of the Bonds:

The Bonds, as and when issued and allotted, shall constitute the general, direct,
unconditional and unsecured obligations of the Issuer and shall at all times rank
pari passu, without any priority or preference among themselves. Furthermore,
subject to the negative pledge clause, third party security interests may be
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registered which will rank in priority to the Bonds against the assets of the Issuer
for so long as such security interests remain in effect;
Listing:

The Malta Financial Services Authority has approved the Bonds for admissibility to
listing and subsequent trading on the Official List of the Malta Stock Exchange.
Application has been made to the Malta Stock Exchange for the Bonds to be listed
and traded on its Official List;

Offer Period:

6 October 2021 to 27 October 2021, both days included;

Interest:

4% per annum;

Intermediaries Offer:

By 17:00 hrs on 27 October 2021;

Interest Payment Date(s):

Annually on 10 November as from 10 November 2022 (the first interest payment
date);

Governing Law:

The Terms and Conditions shall be governed by and construed in accordance with
the laws of Malta; and

Jurisdiction:

The Maltese Courts shall have exclusive jurisdiction to settle any disputes that may
arise out of or in connection with the Bonds.

4.4

INTEREST OF NATURAL AND LEGAL PERSONS INVOLVED IN THE ISSUE
Save for the possible subscription for the Bonds by Authorised Financial Intermediaries (which includes Calamatta Cuschieri
Investment Services Limited), and any fees payable to Calamatta Cuschieri Investment Services Limited in connection with the Bond
Issue as Sponsor, so far as the Issuer is aware, no other person involved in the Bond Issue has an interest, conflicting or otherwise,
material to the Bond Issue.

5.

INFORMATION CONCERNING THE SECURITIES TO BE ISSUED AND ADMITTED
TO TRADING

Each Bond shall be issued on the terms and conditions set out in this Securities Note and, by subscribing to or otherwise acquiring
the Bonds, the Bondholders are deemed to have knowledge of all the terms and conditions of the Bonds hereafter described and
to accept and be bound by the said terms and conditions.

5.1

GENERAL
Each Bond forms part of a duly authorised issue of 4% unsecured bonds 2033 of a nominal value of €100 per Bond issued by the
Issuer at par up to the principal amount of €21,000,000 (except as otherwise provided under section 5.11 “Further Issues”).
a.

The Issue Date of the Bonds is expected to be 10 November 2021.

b.

The currency of the Bonds is Euro (€).

c.

Subject to admission to listing of the Bonds to the Official List of the MSE, the Bonds are expected to be assigned ISIN
MT0000881236.

d.

Unless previously purchased and cancelled or redeemed on any of the Early Redemption Dates, the Bonds shall be
redeemable at par on the Redemption Date.

e.

The issue of the Bonds is made in accordance with the requirements of the Capital Markets Rules, the Act, and the
Prospectus Regulation.

f.

The Bond Issue is not underwritten.

g.

There are no special rights attached to the Bonds other than as specified in section 5.3 hereunder.
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5.2

RANKING OF THE BONDS
The Issuer does not have any bank financing in place, nor has it granted any security over any of its assets.
The Issuer has previously raised finance as follows:
six million Euro (€6,000,000) through a bond programme in 2014, pursuant to which two separate issues of bonds were
issued as follows:
o the 2014 Bonds (which will be repaid through the proceeds of this Bond Issue);
o three million Euro (€3,000,000) ten-year bonds (maturing in 2025) having a coupon of 5.25% issued on the 4
December 2015; and
-

six million Euro (€6,000,000) through a bond programme in 2017, pursuant to which there was a single issue of ten-year
bonds (maturing in 2027) having a coupon of 4.4% issued on the 7 July 2017.

(collectively the “Previous Bond Issues”)
By way of the Amendment Agreement, the 400K Loan Agreement was subordinated in favour of the bond obligations emerging
from this Bond Issue. Moreover, the 2021 Subordinated Loan is already subordinated in favour of the bond obligations arising from
this Bond Issue.
The Bonds constitute the general, direct, unconditional and unsecured obligations of the Issuer and shall at all times rank pari
passu, without any priority or preference among themselves and with other unsecured debt, if any. This would also include the
Previous Bond Issues. Furthermore, subject to the negative pledge clause, third party security interests may be registered which
will rank in priority to the Bonds against the assets of the Issuer for so long as such security interests remain in effect.

5.3

RIGHTS ATTACHING TO THE BONDS
This Securities Note in its entirety contains the terms and conditions of issue of the Bonds and creates the contract between the
Issuer and a Bondholder. Any and all references to the terms and conditions of the Bonds shall be construed as a reference to all
and each section of this Securities Note. A Bondholder shall have such rights as are, pursuant to this Securities Note, attached to
the Bonds, including:
i.
ii.
iii.
iv.
v.

the repayment of capital;
the payment of interest;
ranking with respect to other indebtedness of the Issuer in accordance with the provisions of section 5.2 above;
the right to attend, participate in and vote at meetings of Bondholders in accordance with the Terms and Conditions of
the Bond Issue; and
enjoy all such other rights attached to the Bonds emanating from the Prospectus.

5.4

INTEREST
The Bonds shall bear interest from and including 10 November at the rate of 4% per annum on the nominal value thereof, payable
annually in arrears on each Interest Payment Date. The first interest payment will be affected on 10 November 2022 (covering the
period 10 November 2021 to 9 November 2022). Any Interest Payment Date which falls on a day other than a Business Day will be
carried over to the next following day that is a Business Day. In terms of article 2156 of the Civil Code (Cap. 16 of the laws of Malta),
the right of Bondholders to bring claims for payment of interest and repayment of the principal on the Bonds is barred by the lapse
of five years.
When interest is required to be calculated for any period of less than a full year, it shall be calculated on the basis of a three hundred
and sixty (360) day year consisting of twelve (12) months of thirty (30) days each, and in the case of an incomplete month, the
number of days elapsed.

5.5

YIELD
The gross yield calculated on the basis of the Interest, the Bond Issue Price and the Redemption Value of the Bonds is 4% per
annum. The table below illustrates the gross yield at the different Early Redemption Dates:
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Redemption

At Early
Redemption Dates

Upon Maturity

Redemption Dates

Issue Price

Redemption Price

Yield

2027

€100 (at par)

€100 (at par)

4%

2028

€100 (at par)

€100 (at par)

4%

2029

€100 (at par)

€100 (at par)

4%

2030

€100 (at par)

€100 (at par)

4%

2031

€100 (at par)

€100 (at par)

4%

2032

€100 (at par)

€100 (at par)

4%

2033

€100 (at par)

€100 (at par)

4%

5.6

REGISTRATION, FORM, DENOMINATION AND TITLE
Certificates will not be delivered to Bondholders in respect of the Bonds. The entitlement to the Bonds will be represented in
uncertificated form by the appropriate entry in the electronic register maintained on behalf of the Issuer by the CSD. There will be
entered in such electronic register the names, addresses, identity card numbers (in the case of natural persons), registration
numbers (in the case of companies) and MSE account numbers, and any other relevant information as required from time to time,
of the Bondholders and particulars of the Bonds held by them respectively, and the Bondholders shall have, at all reasonable times
during business hours, access to the register of bondholders held at the CSD for the purpose of inspecting information held on their
respective account.
The CSD will issue, upon a request by a Bondholder, a statement of holdings to such Bondholder evidencing his/her/its entitlement
to the Bonds held in the register kept by the CSD.
Upon submission of an Application Form, Bondholders who opt to subscribe for the online e-portfolio account with the CSD, by
marking the appropriate box on the Application Form, will be registered by the CSD for the online e-portfolio facility and will receive
by mail at their registered address a handle code to activate the new e-portfolio login. The Bondholder’s statement of holdings
evidencing entitlement to Bonds held in the register kept by the CSD and registration advices evidencing movements in such
register will be available through the said e-portfolio facility on https://eportfolio.borzamalta.com.mt/. Further detail on the eportfolio is found on the afore-mentioned website.
The Bonds will be issued in fully registered form, without interest coupons, in denominations of any integral multiple of €100,
provided that on subscription the Bonds will be issued for a minimum of €2,000 per individual Bondholder. Authorised Financial
Intermediaries subscribing to the Bonds through nominee accounts for and on behalf of clients shall apply the minimum
subscription amount of €2,000 to each underlying client.
Any person in whose name a Bond is registered may (to the fullest extent permitted by applicable law) be deemed and treated at
all times, by all persons and for all purposes (including the making of any payments), as the absolute owner of such Bond. Title to
the Bonds may be transferred as provided below under the heading “Transferability of the Bonds” in section 5.10 of this Securities
Note.

5.7

PAYMENTS
Payment of the principal amount of Bonds will be made in Euro by the Issuer to the person in whose name such Bonds are
registered, with interest accrued up to the Redemption Date, by means of direct credit transfer into such bank account as the
Bondholder may designate from time to time, provided such bank account is denominated in Euro and held with any licensed bank
in Malta. Such payment shall be affected within seven (7) days of the Redemption Date. The Issuer shall not be responsible for any
charges, loss or delay in transmission. Upon payment of the Redemption Value the Bonds shall be redeemed and the appropriate
entry made in the electronic register of the Bonds at the CSD.
Payment of interest on a Bond will be made to the person in whose name such Bond is registered at the close of business fifteen
(15) days prior to the Interest Payment Date, by means of a direct credit transfer into such bank account as the Bondholder may
designate, from time to time, which is denominated in Euro. Such payment shall be affected within seven (7) days of the Interest
Payment Date. The Issuer shall not be responsible for any loss or delay in transmission.
All payments with respect to the Bonds are subject in all cases to any applicable fiscal or other laws and regulations prevailing in
Malta. In particular, but without limitation, all payments of principal and interest by or on behalf of the Issuer in respect of the
Bonds shall be made net of any amount which the Issuer is or may become compelled by law to deduct or withhold for or on
account of any present or future taxes, duties, assessments or other government charges of whatsoever nature imposed, levied,
collected, withheld or assessed by or within the Republic of Malta or any authority thereof or therein having power to tax.
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No commissions or expenses shall be charged by the Issuer to Bondholders in respect of such payments. The Issuer shall not be
liable for charges, expenses and commissions levied by parties other than the Issuer.

5.8

REDEMPTION AND PURCHASE
Unless previously purchased and cancelled, the Bonds will be redeemed at their nominal value (together with interest accrued to
the date fixed for redemption) on 10 November 2033, provided that the Issuer reserves the right to redeem all or any part of the
Bonds on any one or more of the Early Redemption Dates. The Issuer shall give at least sixty (60) days’ notice in writing to all
Bondholders of its intention to affect such earlier redemption, stating the number of Bonds that will be redeemed on that Early
Redemption Date and the manner in which it shall select the Bonds for such early redemption.
Subject to the provisions of this section 5.8, the Issuer may at any time purchase Bonds in the open market or otherwise at any
price. Any purchase by tender shall be made available to all Bondholders alike.
All Bonds so redeemed or purchased will be cancelled forthwith and may not be re-issued or re-sold.

5.9

EVENTS OF DEFAULT
The Bonds shall become immediately due and repayable at their principal amount together with any accrued interest, if any of the
following events (“Events of Default”) shall occur:
(a)

the Issuer shall fail to pay any interest on any Bond when due and such failure shall continue for sixty
(60) days after written notice thereof shall have been given to the Issuer by any Bondholder; or

(b)

the Issuer shall fail to pay the principal amount on any Bond when due and such failure shall continue
for sixty (60) days after written notice thereof shall have been given to the Issuer by any Bondholder;
or

(c)

the Issuer shall fail duly to perform or shall otherwise be in breach of any other material obligation
contained in the Terms and Conditions of the Bonds and such failure shall continue for sixty (60) days
after written notice thereof shall have been given to the Issuer by any Bondholder; or

(d)

an order is made or resolution passed or other action taken for the dissolution, termination of
existence, liquidation, winding-up or bankruptcy of the Issuer; or

(e)

the Issuer, unless contractually entitled to do so or does so with the consent of the counterparty/ies,
stops or suspends payments (whether of principal or interest) with respect to all or any class of its
respective debts or announces an intention to do so or ceases or threatens to cease to carry on its
respective business or a substantial part of its respective business; or

(f)

the Issuer is unable, or admits in writing its inability, to pay its debts as they fall due or otherwise
becomes insolvent; or

(g)

there shall have been entered against the Issuer a final judgment by a court of competent jurisdiction
from which no appeal may be or is made for the payment of money in excess of €1,000,000 or its
equivalent and ninety (90) days shall have passed since the date of entry of such judgment without
its having been satisfied or stayed.

5.10 TRANSFERABILITY OF THE BONDS
The Bonds are freely transferable and, once admitted to the Official List of the MSE, shall be transferable only in whole in
accordance with the rules and regulations of the MSE applicable from time to time.
Any person becoming entitled to a Bond in consequence of the death or bankruptcy of a Bondholder may, upon such evidence
being produced as may from time to time properly be required by the Issuer or the CSD, elect either to be registered himself as
holder of the Bond or to have some person nominated by him registered as the transferee thereof. If the person so becoming
entitled shall elect to be registered himself, he shall deliver or send to the CSD a notice in writing signed by him stating that he so
elects. If he shall elect to have another person registered he shall testify such election by transferring the Bond, or procuring the
transfer of the Bond, in favour of that person.
All transfers and transmissions are subject in all cases to any pledge (duly constituted) of the Bonds and to any applicable laws and
regulations.
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The cost and expenses of effecting any registration of transfer or transmission, except for the expenses of delivery by any means
other than regular mail (if any) and except, if the Issuer shall so require, the payment of a sum sufficient to cover any tax, duty or
other governmental charge or insurance charges that may be imposed in relation thereto, will be borne by the Issuer.
The Issuer will not take into account the transfer or transmission of Bonds for a period of 15 days preceding an Interest Payment
Date.

5.11 FURTHER ISSUES
The Issuer may, from time to time, without the consent of the Bondholders, create and issue further debentures, debenture stock,
bonds, loan notes, or any other debt securities, either having the same terms and conditions as any outstanding debt securities or
upon such terms as the Issuer may determine at the time of their issue.

5.12 MEETINGS OF BONDHOLDERS
Bondholders have the following powers, exercisable by a resolution voted for at a meeting of Bondholders, by a majority holding
not less than seventy-five per cent (75%) of the nominal value of Bondholders present at the meeting in person or by proxy:
(a) power to authorise the Issuer to amend and modify the Terms and Conditions (such Terms and Conditions as duly
completed and supplemented in relation to any Series of Bonds by the terms of the relevant Final Terms in relation to
such Series);
(b) power to approve any scheme of reconstruction of the Issuer or the amalgamation of Issuer with any other company or
corporation;
and any such resolution shall be binding on all Bondholders and each Bondholder is bound to give effect to it accordingly.
The Issuer may at any time convene a meeting of the Bondholders. If the Issuer receives a written request by Bondholders holding
ten per cent (10%) of the then outstanding principal amount of the Bonds and is indemnified to its satisfaction against all costs,
losses and expenses, the Issuer must convene a meeting of Bondholders. Meetings shall be convened and requested only for the
purpose of considering a resolution specified in the immediately preceding paragraph.
A meeting of Bondholders shall only validly and properly proceed to business if there is a quorum present at the commencement
of the meeting. For this purpose, a quorum shall be considered present if there are Bondholders present, whether in person or by
proxy, accounting for at least fifty per cent (50%) in nominal value of the Bonds then outstanding.
Once a quorum is declared present by the Chairman of the meeting (being the person who in accordance with the Memorandum
and Articles of Association of the Issuer would chair a general meeting of shareholders) the meeting may then proceed to business
and the Directors of the Issuer or the Bondholder(s) who requested the meeting (as the case may be) or their representatives shall
present to the Bondholders the reasons for proposing the resolution. The meeting shall allow reasonable and adequate time to the
Issuer to present its views to the Bondholders and to the Bondholders to present their views to the Issuer and to the other
Bondholders. The meeting shall then put the resolution to a vote of the Bondholders present.
The voting process shall be managed by the Company Secretary under the supervision and scrutiny of the auditors of the Issuer.
Save for the above, the rules generally applicable to proceedings at general meetings of shareholders of the Issuer shall mutatis
mutandis apply to meetings of Bondholders.
In the event that the Bonds are listed, and for so long as the Bonds remain listed, any resolution which may be proposed shall be
subject to any laws, regulations, rules or bye-laws which may be applicable from time to time.

5.13 NEGATIVE PLEDGE
Without prejudice to the negative pledge undertaking in the 2017 Bond Issuance Programme, the Issuer undertakes, for as long as
any principal or interest under the Bonds or any of the Bonds remains outstanding, not to create or permit to subsist any Security
Interest (as defined below), other than a Permitted Security Interest (as defined below), upon the whole or any part of its present
or future assets or revenues to secure any Financial Indebtedness (as defined below) of the Issuer, unless at the same time or prior
thereto the Issuer’s indebtedness under the Bonds is secured equally and rateably therewith, and the instrument creating such
Security Interest so provides.
“Financial Indebtedness” means any indebtedness in respect of: (A) monies borrowed; (B) any debenture, bond, note, loan, stock
or other security; (C) any acceptance credit; (D) the acquisition cost of any asset to the extent payable before or after the time of
acquisition or possession by the party liable where the advance or deferred payment is arranged primarily as a method of raising
finance for the acquisition of that asset; (E) leases entered into primarily as a method of raising finance for the acquisition of the
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asset leased; (F) amounts raised under any other transaction having the commercial effect of borrowing or raising of money; (G)
any guarantee, indemnity or similar assurance against financial loss of any person;
“Security Interest” means any privilege, hypothec, pledge, lien, charge or other encumbrance or real right which grants rights of
preference to a creditor over the assets of the Issuer;
“Permitted Security Interest” means: (A) any Security Interest arising by operation of law; (B) any Security Interest securing
temporary bank loans or overdrafts in the ordinary course of business; (C) any other Security Interest (in addition to (A) and (B)
above) securing Financial Indebtedness of the Issuer, in an aggregate outstanding amount not exceeding 80% of the difference
between the value of the unencumbered assets of the Issuer and the aggregate principal amount of Bonds outstanding at the time.
Provided that the aggregate Security Interests referred to in (B) and (C) above do not result in the unencumbered assets of the
Issuer being less than 105% of the aggregate principal amount of the Bonds still outstanding;
“unencumbered assets” means assets which are not subject to a Security Interest.

5.14 DIVIDEND RESTRICTION
The Issuer shall not make a dividend distribution except out of profits available for that purpose provided that, in addition to the
requirements laid out in the Act and during the Bond Issue, the Issuer shall not make a dividend distribution except when the profits
available for dividend distribution are greater than an amount corresponding to two (2) years interest payment on the Bonds (the
"Minimum Amount") and in that case, the Minimum Amount shall not be distributed.

5.15 AUTHORISATIONS AND ADMISSIBILITY TO LISTING
The Board of Directors of the Issuer authorised the Bond Issue pursuant to a board of directors’ resolution passed on 24 September
2021. The Malta Financial Services Authority has authorised the Bonds as admissible to the Official List pursuant to the Capital
Markets Rules by virtue of a letter dated 24 September 2021.
The Bonds are expected to be admitted to the Malta Stock Exchange with effect from 10 November 2021 and trading may
commence as from the next Business Day therefrom.

5.16 NOTICES
Notices will be mailed to Bondholders at their registered addresses and shall be deemed to have been served at the expiration of
twenty-four (24) hours after the letter containing the notice is posted, and in proving such service it shall be sufficient to prove
that a prepaid letter containing such notice was properly addressed to such Bondholder at his registered address and posted.

5.17 LEGISLATION UNDER WHICH THE SECURITIES HAVE BEEN CREATED
Maltese law.

6.

TAXATION

6.1

GENERAL
Investors and prospective investors are urged to seek professional advice as regards both Maltese and any foreign tax legislation
which may be applicable to them in respect of the Bonds, including their acquisition, holding and transfer as well as on any income
derived therefrom or on any gains derived on the transfer of such Bonds. The following is a summary of the anticipated tax
treatment applicable to Bondholders in so far as taxation in Malta is concerned. This information does not constitute legal or tax
advice and does not purport to be exhaustive.
The information below is based on interpretation of tax law and practice relative to the applicable legislation, as known to the
Issuer at the date of the Prospectus. Investors are reminded that tax law and practice and their interpretation as well as the levels
of tax on the subject matter referred to in the preceding paragraph, may change from time to time.
This information is being given solely for the general information of investors who do not deal in the acquisition and disposal of
securities in the course of their normal trading activities. The precise implications for investors will depend, among other things,
on their particular circumstances and on the classification of the Bonds from a Maltese tax perspective, and professional advice in
this respect should be sought accordingly.
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6.2

TAXATION OF BONDHOLDERS
6.2.1

UPON ACQUISITION OF BONDS

The acquisition of Bonds in the Company should not trigger a Maltese income tax liability for the Bondholders.

6.2.2

MALTESE INCOME TAX ON INTEREST INCOME ARISING FROM THE HOLDING OF BONDS

Interest
Since interest is payable in respect of a Bond which is the subject of a public issue, unless the Issuer is instructed by a Bondholder
to receive the interest gross of any withholding tax, or if the Bondholder does not fall within the definition of “recipient” in terms
of article 41(c) of the Income Tax Act (Cap. 123 of the laws of Malta), interest shall be paid to such person net of a final withholding
tax, currently at the rate of fifteen percent (15%) (ten percent (10%) in the case of certain types of collective investment schemes)
of the gross amount of the interest, pursuant to article 33 of the Income Tax Act. Bondholders who do not fall within the definition
of a “recipient” do not qualify for the said rate and should seek advice on the taxation of such income as other rules may apply.
Article 41(c) of the Income Tax Act defines the term “Recipient”, which includes (inter alia) a person (both corporate or noncorporate) who is resident in Malta during the year in which investment income is payable to him/her, and EU/EEA nationals (and
their spouse were applicable) who are not resident in Malta for Maltese tax purposes but who apply (at their option) the tax rates
applicable to Maltese residents on the basis that the income that arises in Malta is at least 90% of their world-wide income.
The aforementioned withholding tax is considered as a final tax and a Maltese resident individual Bondholder is not obliged to
declare the interest so received in his or her income tax return (to the extent that the interest is paid net of tax). No person (whether
corporate or non-corporate) should be charged to further tax in respect of such income. Furthermore, such tax should not be
available as a credit against the recipient’s tax liability or for a refund, as the case may be, for the relevant year of assessment in
Malta. The Issuer will render an account to the Maltese Commissioner for Revenue of all amounts so deducted, including the
identity of the recipient.
In the case of a valid election made by an eligible Bondholder resident in Malta to receive the interest due without the deduction
of final withholding tax, interest will be paid gross and such person (whether corporate or non-corporate) will be obliged to declare
the interest so received in his or her Maltese income tax return and be subject to tax on such interest at the standard rates
applicable to such Bondholder at that time. Additionally, in this latter case the Issuer will advise the Maltese Commissioner for
Revenue on an annual basis in respect of all interest paid gross and of the identity of all such recipients. Any such election made by
a resident Bondholder at the time of subscription may be subsequently changed by giving notice in writing to the Issuer. Such
election or revocation will be effective within the time limit set out in the Income Tax Act.
Exchange of Information
In terms of the applicable Maltese legislation, the Issuer and/or its agent are required to collect and forward certain information
(including, but not limited to, information regarding payments made to certain Bondholders) to the Maltese Commissioner for
Revenue. The Maltese Commissioner for Revenue will or may, in turn, automatically or on request, forward the information to
other relevant tax authorities subject to certain conditions.
Relevant legislation includes, but is not limited to:
(i) the Agreement between the Government of the United States of America and the Government of the Republic of Malta to
Improve International Tax Compliance and to Implement FATCA – incorporated into Maltese law through Legal Notice 78 of 2014
(“FATCA Legislation”); and
(ii) the implementation of Directive 2011/16/EU on Administrative Cooperation in the field of Taxation (as amended) which
provides for the implementation of the regime known as the Common Reporting Standard (“CRS”) – incorporated into Maltese law
through Legal Notice 384 of 2015 entitled the Cooperation with Other Jurisdiction on Tax Matters (Amendment) Regulations, 2015.
Under FATCA Legislation, Financial Institutions (“FIs”) in Malta (defined as such for the purposes of FATCA) are obliged to identify
and report financial accounts held by Specified U.S. Persons, as defined under FATCA Legislation, and certain non-U.S. entities
which are controlled by U.S. Controlling Persons, as defined under FATCA Legislation, to the Commissioner for Revenue. The latter
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is in turn required to exchange such information to the US Internal Revenue Service. Financial account information in respect of
holders of the Bonds could fall within the scope of FATCA and they may therefore be subject to reporting obligations.
Pursuant to obligations under FATCA Legislation, FIs reserve the right to store, use, process, disclose and report any required
information, including all current and historical data related to the past and/or present account(s) held by Reportable Persons,
including, but not limited to, the name, address, date of birth, place of birth and US TIN, the details of any account transactions,
the nature, balances and compositions of the assets held in the account, to the Commissioner for Revenue.
The CRS requires Malta based financial institutions (“FIs”) (defined as such for the purposes of CRS) to identify and report to the
Commissioner for Revenue financial accounts held by Reportable Persons, as defined under the CRS Legislation, and certain entities
with one or more Controlling Persons which are classified as Reportable Persons in terms of the CRS. Financial information relating
to Bonds and the holders of the Bonds may fall within the purview of CRS and may be subject to reporting and information exchange
provisions.
In particular with respect to CRS, the following information may be reported by FIs to the Commissioner for Revenue in respect of
each reportable account maintained by the FIs:
-

The name, address, jurisdiction of tax residence, tax identification number (TIN) and date and place of birth;
The account number (or functional equivalent in the absence of an account number);
The account balance or value as of the end of the relevant calendar year or other appropriate reporting period or, if the
account was closed during such year or period, the closure of the account;
The total gross amount paid or credited to the account holder with respect to the account during the calendar year or
other appropriate reporting period with respect to which the FI is the obligor or debtor, including the aggregate amount
of any redemption payments made to the account holder during the calendar year or other appropriate reporting period.

The Commissioner for Revenue shall by automatic exchange framework for reciprocal information exchange, communicate to the
other competent authority, any relevant information that may fall to be classified as reportable, and vice-versa.
FIs reserve the right to request any information and/or documentation required, in respect of any financial account, in order to
comply with the obligations imposed under FATCA and CRS and any referring legislation. In the case of failure to provide satisfactory
documentation and/or information, FIs may take such action as it thinks fit, including without limitation, the closure of the financial
account.

6.3

MALTESE TAXATION ON TRANSFER OF BONDS
6.3.1

INCOME TAX ON CAPITAL GAINS ON A TRANSFER OF THE BONDS

As the Bonds do not fall within the definition of “securities” in terms of article 5(1)(b) of the Income Tax Act, that is, “shares and
stocks and such like instrument that participate in any way in the profits of the company and whose return is not limited to a fixed
rate of return”, to the extent that the Bonds are held as capital assets by the Bondholder, no income tax on capital gains should be
chargeable in respect of a transfer of the Bonds.

6.3.2

DUTY ON DOCUMENTS AND TRANSFERS

In terms of the Duty on Documents and Transfers Act (Cap. 364 of the laws of Malta), duty is chargeable, inter alia, on the transfer
or transmission causa mortis of marketable securities. A marketable security is defined in the said legislation as “a holding of share
capital in any company and any document representing the same”.
Consequently, the Bonds should not be treated as constituting marketable securities within the meaning of the legislation and
therefore, the transfer/transmission thereof should not be chargeable to duty.
Furthermore, even if the Bonds are considered marketable securities for the purposes of the Duty on Documents and Transfers
Act, in terms of article 50 of the Financial Markets Act as the Bonds constitute financial instruments of a company quoted on a
regulated market exchange, as is the MSE, redemptions and transfers of the Bonds should, in any case, be exempt from duty.

THIS INFORMATION IS BEING GIVEN SOLELY FOR GENERAL INFORMATION, IT DOES NOT CONSITITUE A SUBSTITUTE FOR LEGAL OR
TAX ADVICE, AND IT DOES NOT PURPORT TO BE EXHAUSTIVE. INVESTORS AND PROSPECTIVE INVESTORS ARE URGED TO SEEK
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PROFESSIONAL ADVICE AS REGARDS BOTH MALTESE AND ANY FOREIGN TAX LEGISLATION APPLICABLE TO THE ACQUISITION,
HOLDING AND DISPOSAL OF BONDS AS WELL AS INTEREST PAYMENTS MADE BY THE ISSUER. THE ABOVE IS A SUMMARY OF THE
ANTICIPATED TAX TREATMENT APPLICABLE TO THE BONDS AND TO BONDHOLDERS. THIS INFORMATION, WHICH DOES NOT
CONSTITUTE LEGAL OR TAX ADVICE, REFERS ONLY TO BONDHOLDERS WHO DO NOT DEAL IN SECURITIES IN THE COURSE OF THEIR
NORMAL TRADING ACTIVITY.

7.

TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THE BOND ISSUE

7.1 EXPECTED TIMETABLE OF THE BOND ISSUE
1. Application Forms available to the general public

1 October 2021

2. Opening and closing of subscription lists relative to the Offer Period

6 October 2021 to 27 October 2021, both days included

3. Commencement of interest on the Bonds

10 November 2021

4. Expected date of announcement of basis of acceptance

10 November 2021

5. Refunds of unallocated monies (if any)

10 November 2021

6. Expected dispatch of allotment advices

10 November 2021

7. Expected date of admission of the securities to listing

10 November 2021

8. Expected date of commencement of trading in the securities

11 November 2021

7.2

TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF APPLICATION
The following terms and conditions shall be read in conjunction with all the other terms and conditions relative to and regulating
the contractual relationship created between the Issuer on the one hand and the Applicant on the other.
(a)

The issue and allotment of the Bonds is conditional upon: (i) the Bond Issue being at least 67% subscribed and (ii) the Bonds
being admitted to the Official List of the MSE. In the event that either of the aforesaid conditions is not satisfied within 20
Business Days of the close of the Offer Period, any Application monies received by the Issuer will be returned without
interest by direct credit into the Applicant’s bank account as indicated by the Applicant.

(b)

The general public may subscribe for Bonds either by completing an Application Form and lodging same with any of the
Authorised Financial Intermediaries or through the Authorised Financial Intermediaries in the manner instructed thereby
during the Offer Period. which will open at 09:00 hours on 6 October 2021 and will close no later than 17:00 hours on 27
October 2021. In the event of an Intermediaries’ Offer, the general public may apply for the Bonds through the respective
Authorised Financial Intermediary in the manner instructed thereby.

(c)

The Bonds will be issued in multiples of €100. The minimum subscription amount of Bonds that can be subscribed for by
Applicants is €2,000. Applications for the Bonds must be accompanied by the full price of the Bonds applied for, in Euro.

(d)

By submitting an Application, the Applicant is thereby confirming to the Issuer and the Authorised Financial Intermediary
through whom the Application is made that the Applicant’s remittance will be honoured on first presentation and agrees
that, if such remittance is not so honoured on its first presentation, the respective Authorised Financial Intermediary and
Issuer reserve the right to invalidate the relative Application. Furthermore the Applicant will not be entitled to be registered
in the register of Bondholders, unless the Applicant makes payment in cleared funds and such consideration is accepted by
the respective Authorised Financial Intermediary (which acceptance shall be made in the Authorised Financial
Intermediary’s absolute discretion and may be on the basis that the Applicant indemnifies the Authorised Financial
Intermediary against all costs, damages, losses, expenses and liabilities arising out of or in connection with the failure of
the Applicant’s remittance to be honoured on first presentation).

(e)

The contract created by the Issuer’s acceptance of an Application submitted by a prospective bondholder through an
Authorised Financial Intermediary shall be subject to all the terms and conditions set out in this Securities Note and the
Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Issuer.

(f)

If an Application is submitted on behalf of another party or on behalf of a corporation or corporate entity or association of
persons, the person submitting such Application will be deemed to have duly bound his principal, or the relative
corporation, corporate entity, or association of persons, and will be deemed also to have given the confirmations,
warranties and undertakings contained in these terms and conditions on their behalf. Such representative may be
requested to submit the relative power of attorney/resolution or a copy thereof duly certified by a lawyer or notary public
if so required by the Issuer and the Registrar, but it shall not be the duty or responsibility of the Registrar or Issuer to
ascertain that such representative is duly authorised to submit an Application.
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(g)

Legal entities (including corporations or corporate entities or associations of persons) applying for the Bonds need to have
a valid Legal Entity Identifier (“LEI”) which needs to be valid and unexpired, at least, until the admission to listing of the
Bonds. Without a valid LEI code the Application would be cancelled by the respective Authorised Financial Intermediary or
the Issuer acting through the Registrar and subscription monies will be returned to the Applicant.

(h)

In the case of joint applicants, reference to the Applicant in these terms and conditions is a reference to each of the joint
Applicants, and liability therefor is joint and several. The person first-named in the register of Bondholders shall, for all
intents and purposes, be deemed to be such nominated person by all joint Applicants. Such person shall, for all intents and
purposes, be deemed to be the registered holder of the Bond/s so held. It shall not be incumbent on the Registrar or the
Issuer to verify the signatory/ies on any Application Form submitted.

(i)

In respect of a Bond held subject to usufruct, the name of the bare owner and the usufructuary shall be entered in the
register. The usufructuary shall, for all intents and purposes, be deemed vis-à-vis the Issuer to be the holder of the Bond/s
so held and shall have the right to receive interest on the Bond/s and to vote at meetings of the Bondholders but shall not,
during the continuance of the Bond/s, have the right to dispose of the Bond/s so held without the consent of the bare
owner, and shall not be entitled to the repayment of principal on the Bond (which shall be due to the bare owner). It shall
not be incumbent on the Registrar or the Issuer to verify the signatory/ies on any Application Form submitted.

(j)

Applications in the name of deceased persons shall not be accepted by the Issuer and Authorised Financial Intermediaries.

(k)

Applications in the name and for the benefit of minors shall be allowed provided that they are signed by both parents or
the legal guardian/s and may be required to be accompanied by a Public Registry birth certificate of the minor in whose
name and for whose benefit the Application is submitted. Any Bonds allocated pursuant to such an Application shall be
registered in the name of the minor as Bondholder, with interest and redemption monies payable to the parents / legal
guardian/s signing the Application Form until such time as the minor attains the age of 18 years, following which all interest
and redemption monies shall be paid directly to the registered holder, provided that the Issuer is duly notified in writing of
the fact that the minor has attained the age of eighteen (18) years. It shall not be incumbent on the Registrar or the Issuer
to verify the signatory/ies on any Application Form submitted.

(l)

The Bonds have not been and will not be registered under the Securities Act of 1933 of the United States of America and
accordingly may not be offered or sold within the United States or to or for the account or benefit of a U.S. person.

(m) No person receiving a copy of the Prospectus or an Application Form in any territory other than Malta may treat the same
as constituting an invitation or offer to such person nor should such person in any event use such Application Form, unless,
in the relevant territory, such an invitation or offer could lawfully be made to such person or such Application Form could
lawfully be used without contravention of any registration or other legal requirements.
(n)

It is the responsibility of any person outside Malta wishing to make any Application to satisfy himself/herself as to full
observance of the laws of any relevant territory in connection therewith, including obtaining any requisite governmental
or other consents, observing any other formalities required to be observed in such territory and paying any issue, transfer
or other taxes required to be paid in such territory.

(o)

Subject to all other terms and conditions set out in the Prospectus, the Issuer through the Registrar or the Authorised
Financial Intermediary reserve the right to reject, in whole or in part, or to scale down, any Application and to present any
cheques and/or drafts for payment upon receipt. The right is also reserved to refuse any Application which, in the opinion
of the Issuer through the Registrar or the Authorised Financial Intermediary, is not properly completed in all respects in
accordance with the instructions or is not accompanied by the required documents.

(p)

By not later than 10 November 2021, the Issuer shall announce the result of the Issue through an announcement on its
website. The result of the Bond Issue will also be made public via a company announcement upon listing of the Bonds.

(q)

The completed Application Forms are to be lodged with any of the Authorised Financial Intermediaries. Authorised Financial
Intermediaries shall, prior to accepting an Application, conduct an Appropriateness Test in respect of the Applicant and,
based on the results of such test, be satisfied that an investment in the Bonds may be considered appropriate for the
Applicant. To the extent that an Authorised Financial Intermediary is providing advice in respect of a purchase of the Bonds
by an Applicant, such Authorised Financial Intermediary shall be required to conduct a Suitability Test in respect of the
Applicant and, based on the results of such test, be satisfied that an investment in the Bonds may be considered suitable
for the Applicant.
For the purpose of this Securities Note, the term “Appropriateness Test” means the test conducted by any licensed financial
intermediary, when providing an investment service (other than investment advice or portfolio management) in relation
to the subscription for and the trading of Bonds, for the purpose of such licensed financial intermediary determining (after
collecting the necessary information) whether the investment service or the Bonds are appropriate for the prospective
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Applicant or prospective transferee. In carrying out this assessment, the licensed financial intermediary shall ask the
Applicant or the prospective transferee to provide information regarding the Applicant or transferee’s knowledge and
experience so as to determine that the Applicant or transferee has the necessary experience and knowledge in order to
understand the risks involved in relation to the Bonds or investment service offered or demanded, in accordance with Part
BI of the Investment Services Rules (“ISR”). In the event that the Authorised Financial Intermediary considers, on the basis
of the test conducted, that the transfer of Bonds is not appropriate for the Applicant or prospective transferee, the
Authorised Financial Intermediary shall reject the prospective Applicant’s request to subscribe for or acquire Bonds,
irrespective of whether the Applicant or transferee is warned that the investment in the Bonds is not appropriate for the
Applicant or transferee.
For the purpose of this Securities Note, the term “Suitability Test” means the process through which a licensed financial
intermediary providing investment advice or portfolio management services in relation to the subscription for and trading
of Bonds obtains such information from the Applicant or prospective transferee as is necessary to enable the licensed
financial intermediary to recommend to or, in the case of portfolio management, to effect for, the Applicant or prospective
transferee, the investment service and trading in Bonds that are considered suitable for him/her, in accordance with Part
BI of the ISR. The information obtained pursuant to this test must be such as to enable the licensed financial intermediary
to understand the essential facts about the Applicant or prospective transferee and to have a reasonable basis for believing,
giving due consideration to the nature and extent of the service provided, that the specific transaction to be recommended,
or to be entered into in the course of providing a portfolio management service, satisfies the following criteria: a. it meets
the investment objectives of the Applicant or prospective transferee in question; b. it is such that the Applicant or
prospective transferee is able financially to bear any related investment risks consistent with investment objectives of such
Applicant or prospective transferee; and c. it is such that the Applicant or prospective transferee has the necessary
experience and knowledge in order to understand the risks involved in the transaction or in the management of his portfolio
(r)

In the event that an Applicant has not been allocated any Bonds or has been allocated a number of Bonds which is less than
the number applied for, the Applicant shall receive a full refund or, as the case may be, the balance of the price of the
Bonds applied for but not allocated, without interest, by cheque sent by mail to the address shown on the Application
Form, or by credit transfer to such account indicated in the Application Form, at the Applicant’s sole risk within 10 Business
Days from the date of final allocation. The Authorised Financial Intermediaries, the Registrar and the Issuer shall not be
responsible for any charges, loss or delay arising in connection with such direct credit transfer.

(s)

For the purposes of the Prevention of Money Laundering and Funding of Terrorism Regulations 2008 (Legal Notice 180 of
2008, as subsequently amended), all Authorised Financial Intermediaries are under a duty to communicate, upon request,
all information about clients as is mentioned in Articles 1.2(d) and 2.4 of the “Members’ Code of Conduct” appended as
Appendix 3.6 of the MSE Bye-Laws, irrespective of whether the Authorised Financial Intermediaries are MSE members or
not. Such information shall be held and controlled by the Malta Stock Exchange in terms of the Data Protection Act (Cap.
586 of the laws of Malta) and the General Data Protection Regulation (GDPR)(EU) 2016/679 for the purposes and within
the terms of the MSE’s data protection and privacy policy as published from time to time.

(t)

It shall be incumbent on the respective Authorised Financial Intermediary to ascertain that all other applicable regulatory
requirements relating to subscription of Bonds by an Applicant are complied with, including without limitation the
obligation to comply with all applicable anti-money laundering and counter-terrorist financing rules and regulations, all
applicable MiFIR requirements as well as applicable MFSA Conduct of Business Rules and MFSA Rules for investment
services providers.

(u)

By submitting an Application, the Applicant:
i. agrees and acknowledges to have had the opportunity to read the Prospectus and to be deemed to have had
notice of all information and representations concerning the Issuer and the issue of the Bonds contained therein;
ii. warrants that the information submitted by the Applicant is true and correct in all respects and in the case where
an MSE account number is provided by the Applicant, such MSE account number is the correct account of the
Applicant. In the event of a discrepancy between the personal details (including name and surname and the
Applicant’s address) appearing on any Application Form submitted and those held by the MSE in relation to the
MSE account number indicated on the Application Form, the details held by the MSE shall be deemed to be the
correct details of the Applicant;
iii. authorises the Issuer, the Registrar and the MSE to process the personal data that the Applicant provides on
Application, for all purposes necessary and subsequent to the Bond Issue applied for, in accordance with the Data
Protection Act (Cap. 586 of the laws of Malta) and the General Data Protection Regulation (GDPR)(EU) 2016/679.
The Applicant has the right to request access to, and rectification of, the personal data relating to him/her as
processed in relation to the Bond Issue. Any such requests must be made in writing and sent to the MSE. The
requests must further be signed by the Applicant to whom the personal data relates;
iv. confirms that in making such Application no reliance was placed on any information or representation in relation
to the Issuer or the issue of the Bonds other than what is contained in the Prospectus and accordingly agree/s
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v.

vi.
vii.

viii.
ix.

x.
xi.
(v)

that no person responsible solely or jointly for the Prospectus or any part thereof will have any liability for any
such other information or representation;
agrees that the registration advice and other documents and any monies returnable to the Applicant may be
retained pending clearance of his/her remittance and any verification of identity as required by the Prevention of
Money Laundering Act (Cap. 373 of the laws of Malta) and regulations made thereunder, and that such monies
will not bear interest;
agrees to provide the Authorised Financial Intermediary, the Registrar and/or the Issuer, as the case may be, with
any information which may be requested in connection with the Application;
warrants, in connection with the Application, to have observed all applicable laws, obtained any requisite
governmental or other consents, complied with all requisite formalities and paid any issue, transfer or other taxes
due in connection with his/her Application in any territory, and that the Applicant has not taken any action which
will or may result in the Issuer, the Registrar or the Authorised Financial Intermediary acting in breach of the
regulatory or legal requirements of any territory in connection with the issue of the Bond or his/her Application;
warrants that all applicable exchange control or other such regulations (including those relating to external
transactions) have been duly and fully complied with;
represents that the Applicant is not a U.S. person (as such term is defined in Regulation S under the Securities Act
of 1933 of the United States of America, as amended) as well as not to be accepting the invitation set out in the
Prospectus from within the United States of America, its territories or its possessions, or any area subject to its
jurisdiction (the “United States”) or on behalf or for the account of anyone within the United States or anyone
who is a U.S. person;
agrees that all documents in connection with the issue of the Bonds will be sent at the Applicant’s own risk and
may be sent by post at the address (or, in the case of joint Applications, the address of the first named Applicant)
as set out in any Application Form submitted by the Applicant or on its behalf; and
renounces to any rights the Applicant may have to set off any amounts the Applicant may at any time owe the
Issuer against any amount due under the terms of these Bonds.

Any licensed financial intermediary effecting a transfer of Bonds in the secondary market shall be required to carry out an
Appropriateness Test and, if providing advice, a Suitability Test, in respect of the transferee, and be satisfied, based on the
results of such test (or tests, as applicable), that an investment in the Bonds may be considered appropriate and/or suitable
(as applicable) for such transferee.

7.3

PLAN OF DISTRIBUTION AND ALLOTMENT
The Bonds are open for subscription to all categories of investors, provided that the Authorised Financial Intermediaries shall be
required to carry out an Appropriateness Test in respect of each Applicant for the purpose of assessing such Applicant’s level of
knowledge and experience prior to investing in the Bonds. Applications shall not be accepted by the Authorised Financial
Intermediaries unless, based on the results of such Appropriateness Test, the Authorised Financial Intermediaries are satisfied that
an investment in the Bonds may be considered appropriate for the Applicant. To the extent that the Authorised Financial
Intermediaries is providing advice in respect of a purchase of the Bonds by an Applicant, the Authorised Financial Intermediaries
shall be required to conduct a Suitability Test in respect of the Applicant and, based on the results of such test, be satisfied that an
investment in the Bonds may be considered suitable for the Applicant.
The minimum subscription amount of Bonds that can be subscribed for by Applicants is €2,000 and subscription amounts shall be
in multiples of €100. Subscriptions may be made through any of the Authorised Financial Intermediaries.
It is expected that an allotment letter will be issued by the Issuer to Applicants by latest 10 November 2021. The registration advice
and other documents and any monies returnable to Applicants may be retained pending clearance of the remittance and any
verification of identity as required by the Prevention of Money Laundering Act (Cap. 373 of the Laws of Malta), and regulations
made thereunder. Such monies will not bear interest while retained as aforesaid.
Dealing in the Bonds shall not commence prior to admission to trading of the Bonds by the MSE or prior to the said notification.

7.4

INTERMEDIARIES’ OFFER
The Bond Issue will be distributed by the Authorised Financial Intermediaries participating in the Intermediaries’ Offer. Accordingly,
the Issuer has reserved the full amount of the Bond Issue for subscription by these Authorised Financial Intermediaries. In this
regard, the Issuer will enter into conditional subscription agreements with a number of Authorised Financial Intermediaries for the
subscription of Bonds, whereby it will bind itself to allocate the Bonds to the Authorised Financial Intermediaries in accordance
with the terms of such subscription agreements. In terms of each subscription agreement entered into with an Authorised Financial
Intermediary, the Issuer will be conditionally bound to issue, and each Authorised Financial Intermediary will be conditionally
bound to subscribe for, such number of Bonds specified in the relevant subscription agreement subject to the Bonds being admitted
to listing and trading on the Official List. Each subscription agreement becomes binding on each of the Issuer and the relevant
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Authorised Financial Intermediary upon signing, subject to receipt by the Sponsor of all subscription proceeds in cleared funds on
delivery of the signed subscription agreement. The subscription agreements shall become unconditional upon approval by the MSE
of the Issuer’s application for the Bonds to be admitted to the Official List. Authorised Financial Intermediaries subscribing for
Bonds may do so for their own account or for the account of their underlying clients, including retail clients, and shall, in addition,
be entitled to distribute any portion of the Bonds subscribed to their underlying clients upon commencement of trading or instruct
the Sponsor to issue a portion of the Bonds subscribed by them directly to their underlying clients.

7.5

PRICING
The Bonds are being issued at par, that is, at €100 per Bond with the full amount payable upon subscription.
7.6

ALLOCATION POLICY
The Issuer shall allocate the entirety of the Bonds to Authorised Financial Intermediaries participating in the Intermediaries’ Offer
as described above, without priority or preference and in accordance with the allocation policy determined by the Issuer and the
Sponsor. Within five (5) Business Days from closing of the Offer Period, the Issuer shall announce the results of the Bond Issue and
shall determine and announce the basis of acceptance of Applications and the allocation policy to be adopted through a company
announcement. It is expected that an allotment advice will be made available to Applicants by the CSD shortly after listing of the
Bonds. The registration advice and other documents and any monies returnable to Applicants may be retained pending clearance
of the remittance and any verification of identity as is required by the Prevention of Money Laundering Act (Chapter 373 of the
laws of Malta). Such monies will not bear interest while retained as aforesaid.
7.7

APPLICATION FORM/METHOD OF PAYMENT
Applications for the purchase of Bonds by Applicants must be submitted to Authorised Financial Intermediaries. Applications
submitted by Authorised Financial Intermediaries either for their own account or directly in the names of underlying customers
with respect to Pre-Allocation Agreements and the Intermediaries Offer shall be submitted in the manner prescribed in the
respective agreements entered into by the Authorised Financial Intermediaries with the Issuer.
Applications must be accompanied by the full price of the Bonds applied for. In the event that cheques accompanying the
Applications are not honoured on their first presentation, the Issuer and/or the Authorised Financial Intermediary reserves the
right to invalidate the relative Application.

7.8

CREDIT RATING
The Issuer has not sought, nor does it intend to seek, the credit rating of an independent agency and there has been no assessment
of the Bonds by any independent rating agency.
7.9

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION
Save for the property valuation report set out as Annex I to the Registration Document and the financial analysis summary set out
as Annex II to this Securities Note, the Prospectus does not contain any statement or report attributed to any person as an expert.
The property valuation report has been included in the form and context in which it appears with the authorization of Arch. Joseph
Cassar, which has given, and has not withdrawn, its consent to the inclusion of the said report herein. Arch. Joseph Cassar does not
have any material interest in the Issuer. The Issuer confirms that the property valuation report has been accurately reproduced in
the Prospectus, and that there are no facts of which the Issuer is aware, that have been omitted and which would render the
reproduced information inaccurate or misleading.
The financial analysis summary has been included in the form and context in which they appear with the authorisation of Calamatta
Cuschieri Investment Services Limited, which has given and has not withdrawn its consent to the inclusion of such reports herein.
Calamatta Cuschieri Investment Services Limited does not have any material interest in the Company. The Company confirms that
the financial analysis summary has been accurately reproduced in the Prospectus and that there are no facts of which the Company
is aware that have been omitted and which would render the reproduced information inaccurate or misleading.
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ANNEX I – LIST OF AUTHORISED FINANCIAL INTERMEDIARIES
APS Bank p.l.c.
Address: APS Centre, Tower Street, Birkirkara BKR 4012
Telephone: 25603000
Calamatta Cuschieri Investment Services Ltd
Address: Ewropa Business Centre, Triq Dun Karm, Birkirkara BKR 9034
Telephone: 25688688
MeDirect Bank (Malta) p.l.c.
Address: The Centre, Tigne` Point, Sliema TPO 0001
Telephone: 25574400
Michael Grech Financial Investment Services Limited
Address: The Brokerage, Level O A, St Marta Street, Victoria VCT 2550, Gozo
Telephone: 21554492
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ANNEX II – FINANCIAL ANALYSIS SUMMARY
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